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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
LG Electronics Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of LG Electronics Inc. (“LGE™) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Company™) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the vears
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, expressed in Korean won. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of LG Electronics
LS. AL, Inc. and certain other consolidated subsidiaries of LGE, whose financial statements, prior to
the elimination of intercompany transactions, reflect 26% and 24% of the Company’s consolidated
total assets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and 38% and 37% of the Company’s
consolidated total sales for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These
[inancial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for LG Electronics U.S. A., Inc. and certain other
consolidated subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in conformity with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
Korea, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the
reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of the other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of LG
Electronics Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their
operations, changes in their shareholders’ equity and their cash flows for the years ended December
31, 2007 and 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of
Korea.

Samil PricewmerhouseCangers is the Koresns masber fimm of PreewsterbomceCoopers. Procwaredhosse! vopers refers to the network of neember fimns of PricewalerinuseC nopers
Imtereatsmnal Limivad each of which i a separale and isdependent leygal enity.



Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to following matter.

As discussed in Note 2 to accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the
Korea Accounting Institute Opinion 06-2, Deférred Income taxes on Investments in Subsidiaries,
Associates and Interests in Joint Ventures, and changed its method of accounting for income taxes on
temporary differences in relation to investments in subsidiaries and equity method investees to
comply with the new requirement. Accordingly, the prior year financial statements, presented herein
for comparative purposes, have been restated to reflect the changes to conform with SFKAS No. 1.

Accounting principles and auditing standards and their application in practice vary among countries.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position
results of operations, changes in sharcholders’ equity and cash flows in conformity with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of
Korea. In addition, the procedures and practices used in the Republic of Korea to audit such financial
statements may difter from those generally accepted and applied in other countries. Accordingly, this
report and the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements are for use by those who are
informed about Korean accounting principles or auditing standards and their application in practice.

Seoul, Korea
March 21, 2008

This report is effective as of March 21, 2008, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or
circumstances, which may occur between the audit report date and the time of reading this report, could
have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.
Accordingly, the readers of the audit report should understand that there is a possibility that the above
audit report may have to be revised to reflect the impact of such subsequent events or circumstances, if

any.




LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2007 and 2006

{in mitlions of Korean won) 2007 2006
Assets
Current assels

Cash and cash equivalents (Motes 3 and 33) W 2524654 W 2,101,302
Short-term financial instruments (MNote 3) TE5, 106 63,067
Short-term mvestments (Mote 4) 329 747
Trade accounts and notes recervable, net (Motes 5 and 33) 5.383.949 4.058,829
Inventories, net (Notes 6 and 12) 5,708,260 5,795,019
Short-term loans receivable (Motes 5, 31 and 33) 20,911 22,359
Other accounts receivable. net (Notes 5 and 33) 1.092.050 820,919
Prepaid expenses 226,134 153,044
Accrued income, net (MNote 3) B2,369 65,9096
Advance paymenis, net (Note 5) 131,934 111,213
Prepaid income laxes 245 630 151,614
Derivative transaction debit (Note 17) 10,207 44916
Deferred income tax assets (Note 18) 740,743 234 052
Cither current assets 374,106 414,686
Total current assets 17,326,382 14,037,763
Property, plant and equipment, net (Notes 9, 11 and 12) 14,406,331 16,322,930
Long-term fnancial nstroments (Notes 3 and 33) 86.817 124,335
Long-term invesiment securities (Note 7) 42 482 56,609
Equity method investments (Note 8) 445 402 458,960
Refundable deposits 477.508 438,805
Long-term loans receivahle, net (Note 5) 101,558 117,805
Long-term advance payvmenis. net 195,937 149,505
Long-term prepaid expenses 207,958 274453
Derivative transaction debit (Note 17) 5,641 4.507
Deferred income tax assets (Note 18) 566,828 745,130
Intangible assets, net (Note 10) 590,589 621,736
Other non-current assets 40,994 1,770

Total assets W 34584427 W 33354418
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LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2007 and 2006

fin millions of Korean won)

Liabilities and Sharcholders' Equity
Current habilities
Short-term borrowings (Motes 13 and 33)
Current maturities of long-term debts
and debentures, net (Note 13)
Trade accounts and notes payable (Notes 31 and 33)
Other accounts pavable (Note 33)
Acecrued expenses
Advances from customers
Withholdings (Note 33)
Income taxes pavable (Mote 18)
Denvative transaction credit (Note 17)
Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 18)
Other current hiabilities (Note 33)
Tatal current liabilities

Debentures and convertible bonds, net of current maturities
and discounts on debentures (Note 14)
Long-term debis, net of current maturities (Motes 14 and 33)
Accrued severance benefits, net (Note 15)
Product warranty reserve (MNote 16)
Derivative lransaction credit (Note 17)
Deferred income tax liabilities (Notes 2 and 18)
Other long-term liabilities (Note 17)
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)

Caontrolling shareholders' equity

Capital stock (Note 19)
Capital sumplus (Mote 20)
Capital adjustment (Note 21)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 22)
Retamed earnings (Mote 23)

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Unappropriated retained earnings

Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries

Total sharcholders' equity

Tuatal liabilities and shareholders’ equity

2007 2006
W 4258478 W 5031265
892.433 1,468,640
4,452,922 4,252,500
2,224216 2577717
1.671,791 1,417,159
305,937 401.632
323,519 375,891
303.623 145,368
67,040 20071
687 3.064
115,800 58,082
14,616,455 15,760,389
3,553,829 3,272,585
1,986,464 2,567,905
352,891 356,006
461,794 348,114
76,720 23,832
578,227 262,423
130,093 635,597
21,756,473 22,636,851
809,169 809,169
2,559,605 2,539,631
(44.803) (44,893)
OB.643 84,206
145,107 149,323
2,465,654 2413015
1,144,595 16,740
5,650,074 4,730,376
12,827.954 10,697 567
W 34584427 W 33354418

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements,
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LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

{in millions of Korean won, except per share amaounis)
Sales (Notes 25, 31 and 32)

Cost of sales (Motes 26, 31 and 32)

Gross profit

Selling and administrative expenses (Note 27)
Operating income

Non-operating income

[nterest income

Rent income

Foreign exchange gains

Giain on disposal of investment securities

Gain on valuation of equity method investments (Note #)
Gain on disposal of property,plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of intangible assets

Gain on settlement of derivatives

Gain on valuation of derivatives

Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts
Others

Non-operating expenses

Interest expense

Foreign exchange losses

Loss from fransfer of trade accounts and notes receivable
Loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss from disposal of intangible assets

Loss from disposal of invesiments

Loss on valuation of equity method investments (Mote )
Orher bad debt expense

Donations

Loss on settlement of derivatives

Loss on valuation of derivatives

Loss from early redemption of debentures

Lass on impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 9)

Loss on impairment of investment assets
Loss on impairment of intangible assets (Note 10}
Oihers

2007 2006
W 53426741 W 46,339.864
41,351,661 37,684,208
12,075,080 8,655,636
9,253,647 8,650,571
2,821,433 5,085
174.920 141,437
29,897 35,371
1.167.055 1,100.479
42,180 24,979
78,005 48,945
57.898 21,730
267 123
63,321 51,560
9,802 11,279
4,197 19,416
260,760 103,751
1,488,992 1,568,070
575,766 550,195
871,797 869,443
107,770 288,573
59,701 32,235
1,583 823
2,461 2,019
19,550 23,475
9,449 -
20,955 27,053
85,416 40,890
92,641 30,832
19,500 <
79,208 3,266
19.661 1,799
56,651 360
109415 108,926
2,331,524 1,479,489




LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

(tn milltons of Karean won, except per shave amounts) 2007 2006
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 2378901 (40,734}
Income tax expense (benefit) (Notes 2 and 18) 310203 {198,220)
MNet Income (loss) W 2,068,698 W (208,514)
Controlling interest net income L 1,228,922 W 245,203
Minority interest net income (loss) H39.T776 (453,717}
Basic earnings per share (in won) (Note 29) W 7.625 W 1,517
Diluted eamings per share (in won) (Note 29) 7.625 1,517

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries

Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

fin milliony of Korean won)

Accumulated other

Capital Capital Capital comprehensive Retnined Minority
stock surplus adjustments income earnings interests Total

Balance m

January [, 2006 W B0226 2505157 W (44,803 W 96,522 W 2,580,796 W 5185002 W 11215810
Cumulative effect of changes

In secounting principles . (165,266} - {14,704) (22.310) - {202,280
Restated balance ROD,226 2,420 8491 (44, 893) RBIBIR 2558436 5,188,002 11.013,530
Cash dividends - - . - (199,954) { 16,450) {216,446)
Balance after

cash dividends - - - 2,358,530 5,171,512 10,797 (184
Net income (loss) s = 245,203 (453,717} (208,514)
Conversion of

convertible bonds 8,943 112,734 - - - 121,677
Adjustment for changes in

ownership, e (2,742) - - - {2,742)
Change in eguity investees

with nel aceumulated

comprehensive expense - - - (L2277} - {1.27H
Crain on valuation of

dertvatives, net - 785 - - 785
Lo=s on valuation of

available for sake securities - - (6.375) - {5,375}
Imeome taxes added 16

shareholders' equity - i1,548) - 5 = 3 (1,546)
Others 1,294 - 0255 {24,655) 12,581 {1,525)
Balance at

December 31, 2000 W R09,169 25396031 W (44,893) W B2 W 2579078 W 473376 W 10697567
Balance ai

January |, 2007 W R00. 069 foL T RET W (593 W TeA05 W 2500004 W 4730376 W 10868248
Cumulitive effect of changes

In accounting principles - [165,266) - 5,601 {11,016) - (170,641)
Restated balance RO 1649 25359631 {44,593} B4 2046 25370078 A, THLITH 10,6597 567
ash dividends . . - . {121,659 (8,593 (130,252)
Balance after

cash dividends = = = 2457419 4721783 10,567,315
Nel income 1,235,922 B39,776 2068695
Changes in consideration for

convertible righiz | 3,607 . - 31,292 35499
Changes in the

consolidated entities - 6367 74,634 A 10010
Change in equity investees

wilh net accumulated

comprehensive expense - (52,406) - (52 406)
Loss on valuation of

derivatives, net - {10,287) - {16,857) (27.144)
Gam on valuation of

availohle for sule seourities - - - L] = % 266
(ithers - - - 76,864 {5,519} H3,080 134,325
Balance at

Pecember 31, 2007 W R0, 169 2330605 W (44, 593) W GRA43 W 3755350 W 5650074 W 12827954

The accompanyving notes are an integrl part of these consolidated financial siatements,



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

fin millions of Korean won)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income loss)

Adjustments o reconeile net income loss) to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation

Amortization, net

Loss on impairment of intangible assets
Amortization of discounts on debentures
Provision for severance benefits
Provision for product warranty reserve

Loss from transfer of trade accounts and notes recevable

Bad debt expense | net

Loss (gain) on foreign curmeney translation, net
(G} From disposal of imvestment securities, net
Loss on impairment of investment securities

Loss on impairment of property, plant and equipment

Loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Loss{gain’} on valuation of equity method investments, net

Loss on valuation of derivatives, net

Loss from disposal of intangible pssets
Loss (gain} on settlement of derivatives, net
Laoss on early redemption of debentures
Others

Changes in operating assets and habilities
Decrease in trade accounts and notes receivable
Increase in other accounts receivable
Increase in ncerued income
Increase in advances
Decrease in other current asseis
Increase in inventories
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in prepaid income taxes
Increase in deferved meome fax assets
Incrense in trade accounts and notes pavable
Degrease in other accounts payable
Increase in accrued expenses
{ Decrease) ncrease in withholdings
{Decrease) increase in advances from customers
Increase in uneamed income
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Tnerease (decrease) in deferred meome tax habilities
Increase in income taxes payable

Accrued severance benefits transferred from affiliated company, net

Payment of severance benefils
{Increase) decrease in severance insurance deposits

Decrease in contributions 10 the National Pension Fund

Decrease in warranty reserve
Dividends received
Increase {decrease) in other long-term debts

Met cash provided by operating activities

2007 2006
W 2068698 W (208.514)
3814371 3,566,344
162,574 154,146
S6.651 360
47,736 50,632
371,062 265,206
1,057,943 1,037.724
307,770 288,573
22479 0458
14,196 (238.051)
(30,719 (22.060)
19,661 1,799
79,208 3,266
1803 10,505
(58,345) {25.470)
82,439 19,553
1316 700
22,095 {10,670
19,500 Z
19,218 z
6,002,158 5,120,205
{1,796.415) 6, 1 08
(407.357T) {176.326)
{32.941) (21,246)
(20,820) (41.450)
4,344 36,308
146.861) 4.075)
(144,121 (127401}
(G4,038) (33,313)
{308,707) (271,704}
469,671 744 469
(101,079 (350,142)
250,142 71452
(43346 204,858
42,114 70497
14,237 5242
34,176 (239 880
366,656 {79,876)
108,128 75,408
(799} 2,156
(212.824) (346,680}
(138376} 107,146
2,041 4934
(944,263) (832.685)
3,306 5,286
66,335 {44,769)
5,035,741 3,731,894




LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

fin millions of Korean won)

Cash flows from investing activities
hsposal of short-term financial instruments
Disposal of long-term financial instruments
Disposal of short-term mvestments assets
Disposal of short-term and long-term loans
Increase in shori-term and long-term loans
Acquisition of short-term financial instruments
Acquisition of long-term financial instruments
Increase in other non-current assets

Disposal of investment securities

Acquisition of investment securitics

Rewm of refundable deposits

Payment of refundahle deposits

Decrease in other non-current assets

Progeeds trom disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets
Proceeds trom disposal of dervatives
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Agquisition of intangible assets

Acquisition of derivatives

Met cash used m investing activities

Cash fMlows from financing activities

Proceeds from short-term bormowings

Repayvment of short-term bomrowings

Repayment of current maturities of long-tesm debt
Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of debentures

Proceeds from long-term debis

Redemption of debentures

Pavment of dividends

Subsidiarics’ issuance ol common stock

Change in overseas operations translation adjustments

Met cash used in financing activitics
Increase in cash due to changes in the consolidated entities

MNet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 34)
Beginning of the year

End of the year

2007 2006
03,042 17619
62,771 25201

320 T.682
30,738 31,792
(12,518 {42,447
(TRS.080) (20,017
(25,253) (129,394)
(25.674) (2,553)
49138 24,329
(25,747) (104,756}
57,554 135873
(96,266) (77.473)
- 5400
225444 356,636
1,156 24610
|4,502 38,050
(2.468,303) (4,476.952)
(129,830) [243.56T)
(10,35%) (6.405)
(3.0a% 265 (4.430.863)
4,438,102 5,333,664
(5,164,204) (5.412.956)
{1,469,725) {1,709,846)
{751 846) (131.302)
1,228,020 440,250
(094,230 1,394,665
(591,398) :
(130,252) (216,446)
. 41,583
200,260 43,928
(1.546.823) (187451}
3063 12.220
423,352 (R0,200)
2,101,302 2,981,502
W 2524654 W 2,100,302

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these consolidated fnancial statements.



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

1. The Consolidated Companies and Equity Method Investees

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LG Electronics Inc.
(LGE or Controlling Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Company™).
General information on the controlling company, its consolidated subsidiaries and its equity

method investees is described below:

The Controlling Company

LG Electronics Inc. (the “Company™) was spun oft from LG Electronics Investment Ltd. (formerly
LG Electronics Inc.) on April 1, 2002, to engage in the manufacture and sale of electronic, and
information and communication products. Former LG Electronics Inc. was incorporated in October
1958 under the Commercial Code of the Republic of Korea to manufacture and sell electronics,
and information and communication products, and had its shares listed on the Korea Stock
Exchange in April 1970. As of December 31, 2007, the Company operates manufacturing facilities
mainly in Kuro, Pyeongtaek, Chongju, Gumi and Changwon in the Republic of Korea.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company has outstanding capital stock amounting to W809,169
million, including non-voting preferred stock. The Company’s stock was relisted on the Korean
Stock Exchange on April 22, 2002, and its depositary receipts (“DRs") were relisted on the London
Stock Exchange in September 2002.

As of December 31, 2007, LG Corp. and its related parties own 31.1% of the Company’s total
stocks including common stock and preferred stock, while financial institutions, foreign investors

and others own the rest of the Company’s commaon stocks.

Consolidated Subsidiaries and Equity Method Investees
Consolidated subsidiaries and equity method investees as of December 31, 2007, are as follows:

{in millions of Korean won)

Domestic subsidiaries
LG Micron Ll
LG Innotek Co, Lid.
LG Philips LCD Co., Lud.
Hi Plaza Inc
Hi Business Logistics
LG fund for small and medinm enterprises
Innovation Investment Fund | formerly Blue
Ocean Investment Association )
Domestic cquity method investecs
Hankuk Electric Glass Co., Lid
LG-Norel Co., Lid
Foorea Information
Certificate Authorty Inc,
Paju Electric Glass Co,, Lid,

System Air-con Engineering Lud.

Sharcholders'
erjuity

335.692
235,869
4289371
118,344
11810
17036

11.82%

430,050
481,032

200,388
55,142
|.554

Tuotal issued and
outstanding
shares

LS00, 000
B,620, 800
357815700
7440000

T20,000
[

B073375
2 0 )

4 280,000
300,000
3400

Shares owned by
Percentage of
ownership

LGE Subsidiaries Tatal (%)
2699702 - 2,690,702 36,00
607,400 - £, (00 T HH) 480
135,625,000 - 135625000 EFRL
T 440,000 - T A0 000 100,040
20,000 - T4k, (0 100 (4D
i ] i "?f!.ﬂﬂ
; 1 3 E3.33
614,675 - 1614675 20.00
999,999 - 4R G 50.00
A00.000 . AU 927
- | 440 000 1,440,000 40.00
340,000 - 340,000 106000



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2007 and 2006

(" in milfions of Kovean wont

Sharduldes’
eyuity
Owverseas subsidinries
LG Electronics Ausiria GmbH {LGEAG) 10,005
LG Electronics Alabama, Inc. { LGEAL G, 5923
LG Electronics Almaty Kazak Co., Lid.

{LOEAK) 20,562
LG Electronics Austrmbia Pry, Lid. (LGEAP) 35,871
LG Electronics Klima Sanayi ve Ticarel P.S.

(LGEAT) 73,810
LG Electronies Da Amazonia Lida

(LOEAZ) 184,213
L& Electronics Colombia Lida. (LGECE) 50,708
LG Electronics China Co,, Lid, { LGECH) 21,786
LG Electronies Canada, Inc. (LGECT) 35231
LG Electronics Inc. Chile Limitada (LGECL) 30,034
LG Electronics Czech 5.R.0. (LGECZ) 14,754
LG Electromics Deutschland GmbH

(LGEDG) 38,603
LG Electronics Egypt S.AE. {LGEEG) £.391
LG Electronics Espana 8.4 { LGEES) 34,533
LG Goldstar France 5. A R.L (LGEFS) 22,997
LG Electromics Gulf FZE {LGEGF) 17,245
LG Electronies HE Limited (LGEHE ) [1.532)
LG Electronics Nature ( Hangxhou)

Recording Media Co,, Ltd [ LGEHN) 11,240
LG Electronies Hellas 8. A, { LGEHS) 8167
LG Electronics Huizhou Inc, { LGEHZ) 49,743
LG Electronies India PVT Lid, (LGEIL) 252173
PT LG Electronics ndonesia Lid, ( LGEIN)} B9 156
LG Ebectromics ltaly 5.P.A. (LGEIS) 17,168
LG Elesctronics Japan Inc, {LGEJP) 4,571
Funshan LGMS Computer Co,, L.

(LGEKS) 10100
LG Electronics Latvia, LLC {LGELV ) 1,756
LG Electromics Mlawa SP.Zo.0. {LGEMA} 135,171
LG Electronics Morocco 5.4 R.L, ( LGEMC) 10,113
GoldSmr MobileComm, France

5,45 Ui LGEMF) TAST
LG Electronics Magyar kAt (LGEME) 17,066
L Electronics (M) SDN.BHDH{ LGEML) 4,058
LG Electrmcs Momterey Mexico 5.4, DE

C.V. (LGEMM} 45460
LG Electronics Mobile Research US AL LLC

{LGEMR) 1,050
LG Electronies Mexice 5.A. DEC.V.

(LGEMS) 120146

Total issued and
outstanding

sharcs

2y

2,685,000

ZRE 000

42,H00
l

I

144,000
472 967
69,848
40
6752817

1,600,000
I

113,128,726
51,920
18,785,000
1380040

412,616
523

00,000
i

23515181

70,162

714,328

Shares owned by

LGE Subsidiaries Total
1 I |
- 266 266
1 1 I
2,685,000 - 2685000
144,000 144,000
i 1 I
1 I ]
1 1 I
42,900 - 42,900
1 1 1
1 1 1
I 1 1
1 36.B00 136,800
472957 472567
- 6%, 848 G R4d
40 40
6,752,817 . 6,752,817
i I E
- 1 600000 1,600,004
I I ]
113,128,726 = 1EL128.726
51,920 - 51920
= 18, THS (M0 18,755 000
1,380,000 = 1 380,000
] ] i
I 1 I
412016 412,616
315,213 - 315213
0100 - A0 ()
I I 1
28515181 - 28,515,141
fi T, 156 70,162
i i |
714,028 300 714,328

Percentage of
ownership

(a)

[LEARE
10400

100,00
100000

A0.00

10000
10000
100,00
100,00
10000
1003,01)

L0000

95.00
100,00
JRUSETI]
UARTE
104000

TLO0
L IRES

B0
{TRE]
160,00
10000
100,00

1000
10606k
10600
1040008
[EETREH
LOHE ()
IATEREN
IEATERNH]

(RELH

[REAREN



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

{ in mitlions of Karean won)

LG Electronics Mexical 5.4 D E
C.VJ(LGEMX)

LG Electromics { Manjing) Plazma Co,, Lid.
{LGENP)

Manjing LG-Tontru Color Display System
Co, Lo, (LGENTY)

LG Electronics Philippines, Inc.

[LGEPH) {formerly LGECM)

LG Electronies Polska 3P Zo. O (LGEPL)

Manjing LG Panda Appliances Co., Lid.
[LGEPN)

Overseas subsidinries

LG Electronics Peru 5. A, (LGEPR)

LG Electronics Panama 5.4, (LGEPS)

LG Electromics Portugal {LGEFT)

Quingdao LG Inspur Rigital Communication
Co., Ld(LGEQD)

LG Electronics Qinhuangdan Co., Lid.

( LGEQH)

LG Electronics RUS, LLCILGERA)}

LG Electronics Russia Inc. { LGERI)

LG Electronics Romamia 5. B.L { LGEROY

LG Electronics Revnosa, 5.4, DECY,
(LGERS}

LG Electronics 5.4, Pty Ltd. (LGESA)

LG Electromics European Holdings BV,
{LGEEH]

LG Elsctronics European Logistics &

Services B.V(LGELS)

LG Electronics Eumpean Shared  Service
Center B.Y, (LGESC)

LG Electronics Beneluxi LGEBN)

LG Electronies NT Euwrope B.V.(LGEJE)

Shanghai LG Electronics Co., Lid, (LGESH)

LG Electronics Singapore Pre Lid, (LGESL}

LG Electronics de Sao Paulo Lida. (LGESP)

LG Electronics Sweden AB (LGESW)

LG Electronics Shenyang Inc, (LGESY)

LG Electronics Tranjin Appliance Co., Lid.

{LGETA)
LG Electronics Thailand Co,, Lid. (LGETH)

ety

14,862

21,158

44,456

4,13
30913

35,706

17,708
44223
B8R

20,079

10,070
46,182
10,518
12,552

37 T74
30,719

44,639

9358

1.883
9,952
375
14,950
.83l

[ 91,303
8220
63,6001

a6, 839
43,064

Total issued and
outstanding
shares

899,625

739,036
28,366

59,626,822

193,747
I

[

[

2410
2,052 000

12,000
203 344,000

1,544

150,001
1R 000

180
i

11083 994
I

o, 15T

6.1 38,995

Shares owned hy

LGE

TIG036

39,626,822
193,747

2290

203 344,040

6,544

11,083,999
|

L

i, ] 38,995

Subsidiaries

R49 f25

28,366

2052000

72,000

1 50,000
L8 000
180)

Tuotal

899,625

730036
28,366

59,626,822

193,747
[

2290
2.052 060

72,000
293 344 000

6544

| 50,000
18,000

180
i

| 1,083,999
i

76,157

6,138,905

Percentage of
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(%)
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LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

{ in milfions aof Korean waon)

Tatzhou LG-Chunlan Home Appliances
Co, Lid (LGETR H formerly LGECT)

LG Taistar Electromies Tarwan Co., Lid.
(LGETT)

LG Electronics United Kangdom L.
(LGELK)

LG Electromics LS. AL, Ine, (LGELS)

LG Elegtronics Viemam Co., Lid. { LGEVN)

LG Electronics Wroclaw Spfoo. (LGEWR)

Langchao LG Digital Maobile
Communication Co., Lud, (LGEY'T)

LG Electronics MobileComm USA. I,

{ LGEMU) { Subsidiary of LGEUS)
LG Soltware PVT, Lid (LGS0
Zenith Electronies Corporation ( Zenith)
EIC Properties PTE, Lid,
LGE (China) R&D Center
LG Holdings {HE) Lud
Beging LG Building Development
Overseas subsidiaries
LG Electronics Overseas Trading FZE

{ Db}
LG Philips LCD Amenca,Inc.
LG . Philips LCD Japan Co., Lid.
LG . Philips LCD Germany GmbH
LG . Philips LCD Tarwan Co,, Lud.
LG, Philips LCD Manging Co., Ltd.
LG Philips LCD Hong Kong Co., Lul.
LG Philips LCD Shanghan Co., Lid
LG Philips LCD Poland Sp. oo,
LG. Philips LC D Guangzhou Co., Lid
LG Innotek Huizhou Co., Lud,
LG Innoetek Yantai Co., Lad
PT.LG Innotek Indonesia
LG Innotek USA Inc.
LG Innedek Poland., Ltd
LG Microni Fujian) Electronies Co., Lid
LG Philips LCD Shenzhen Co., Lid,
Global Professional Sourcing Co., Lid
Overseas equity method investees
Hitachi-LG Data Storage Ine. (HLDS)
LG Electronies Argentina 5.4, | LGEAR)
LG Electronics Egypt Cairo 5.AE. {LGEEC)

Sharcholders’

T4, 728

11,683

15,431
111,702
B459
64,334

34 55T

36,288
14,599
453 571
21,812

6,533
243,064
112310

46,893
10,297
5831
B4 5
15,628
237881
7.564
3007
154,231
62,224
28,750
51,823
6,977
2244
7,132
17.241
1481
289

55,343
11,114
2883

Todal issued and
outstanding
shares

52,892 542

192 00K
32884

1E1018

101000
5,946,000
2,000
34,170,060
I

204 (6, 285
l

I
5,000,000
| 2060
Gt
111,550,000

1E5.000
i
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|

L
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10,004
05,742

[RAICIREAH]

30,000
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1
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]
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21000
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I

115000
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4103277
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1

TG 000

35078750
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]
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LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2007 and 2006

{in milfions of Kovean won)

Sharcldders’
enpuity
LG Electromics Middle East Co., Ltd.
{LGEME) 462
LG MITR Electronics Co, Ltd. (LGEMT) 5774
LG Electronics Ukraine Co., Ltd. (LGEUR) 1,041
LG Philips Displays Holding BV, {526.605)
Electrvmagnetica Goldstar 5. E_L. 1,016
5LD TELECOM Pre Lid, 168,274
Triveni Digital Inc. 1,031
LG Electromes RUS-Marketing, LLC
(LGERM) 204
Hi Logistics China Company Limited 3300
Hi Logistics Europe B.Y. 2,576
LG Pasig 2,567
LG Micron Taiwan) Lud, 27
LG SHAKER €0 LTD (LGESR) 9,176
LG Electromics Africa
Logistics FEE{LGEAF) 759
LG Electronics Antwerp Logistics NV
{LGEAL) 1275
LG Electroamcs Wales Lid. { LGEWA) B30 880

Shares owned by

Total issued and

outstanding
shares LGE Subsidiaries
31.999 32,599 .

5,076,000 5076000 :
I 1 1

68,182 A 34,090
2,650 1,325 .
246,150,000 62458000 i
22357 500 1%, 5060000 -

| 1 1

12,000 - 12,00
1 - 38

I I i

371250 181913 -
i 3 4

101,600 - 10,0400
2042 203 - 2042 203

There are no issued and outstanding shares since these are not a corporation,

Total

12,4904
5,076,000

I

34,090
1,325
62458000
15,500,000

12,000
Kk

181,913

14,000
2.042 203

Percentage of
ownership

(%)

{E U]
101 0X)
[ Ce1 )
S0.00
50,00
25.37
8722

100,00
1 0000
[IRHEIY
31.00
10000
449,00

EART

TR EN]
[ILAREY]

The consolidated subsidiaries and equity method investees are classified in accordance with the
Enforcement Decree on External Audit for Corporations and SKFAS No. 25, Consolidated

Finarncial Statements.

MNewly consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, are as follows:

Consolidated subsidiaries
LG Electronics Austria GmbH (LGEAG)
LG Soft India PYT., Lid. (LGELY)
LG Electronics Wrockw 5p. Zoo, (LGEWR)

LG Electronics Mobile Research US AL LLC.

{LGEMR)
Inovation Investment Fund { Formerly Blue
Crcean Investment Association)
LG Philips LCD Shenghen Co, Lud,
Cilehal Professional Sourcing Co., Lid,

Remarks
Toval assets increased to more than W 7000 million
Total assets increased o more than W 7,000 million
Tkl assets increased W more than W7,000 million

Total assels increased o more than W 7,000 million
Total assets increased 1o more than W 7000 million

The subsidiary wis newly established in 2007
The subsidiary wes newly established in 2007
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LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Excluded subsidiaries as of December 31. 2007, but were consolidated as of December 31, 2006, is
as follows:

Exeluded subsidiarier Remark
LG MITR Electronics Co., Lid. (LGEMT) The subsidiary is currently under Bquidation as of December 31, 2007,
LG Electronics Antwerp Logistics NV {LGEAL)Y The subsidiary 15 currently under Bguidation as of Deceanber 31, 2007
LG Electronics Wales Lid {LGEWA) The subsidiary is currently under bguidation as of December 31, 2007,

The primary business activities of the consolidated subsidiaries are as follows:

(1) LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd.

(2)

(3)

(4)

(3)

The LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary was incorporated in 1985 under its original name
of LG Soft, Ltd. and commenced its manufacture and sale of Thin Film Transistor Liquid
Crystal Display (“TFT LCD™) in 1999. On July 26, 1999, LG Electronies Inc., Koninklijke
Philips Electronics N.V. and the Company entered into a joint venture agreement. Pursuant to
the agreement, the Company changed its name from LG LCD Co., Ltd. to LG.Philips LCD Co.,
Ltd. on August 27, 1999,

The Company listed its shares with the Korea Stock Exchange and with US Securities and
Exchange Commission in July 2004,

LG Innotek Co., Ltd.

LG Innotek Co., Ltd. was incorporated in February 1976, to manufacture and sell electronics,
electrical and machinery components, As of December 31, 2007, the head office is in Seoul and
its manufacturing plants are in Gumi and Gwangju. It merged with LG Connect and
Development Co., Ltd in March 1999 and transferred the system business to Nex1 Future Co.,
Ltd. in July 2004,

Hi Plaza Inec.

Hi Plaza Inc, was incorporated in May 1997, to sell electronics, and information and
communication products, which LGE manufactures, in the domestic market. As of December
31, 2007, the head office is in Seoul and it operates 198 distributors throughout the country. Hi
Plaza Inc. changed its name in October 1998,

LG Micron Ltd.

LG Micron Ltd. was incorporated in May 1983, to manufacture and sell electronic
components such as shadow mask and photo mask. LG Micron Ltd. listed its shares on the
Korea Stock Exchange in December 2000.

LG Electronics USA Ine. ("LGEUS")

LG Electronics USA Inc. was incorporated in New Jersey, U.S.A_, in August 1978, to sell
electronics, and information and communication products, which LGE manufactures, in the
U.S.A.



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2007 and 2006

(6) LG Electronics U.K. Ltd. ("LGEUK")

LG Electronics UK. Ltd. was incorporated in Slough, United Kingdom, in December 1986, to
sell electronies, and information and communication products, which LGE manufactures, in
the United Kingdom.

(7} Other consolidated subsidiaries
Other than the subsidiaries above, there are 95 other consolidated subsidiaries including Hi
Business Logistics, eleven subsidiaries of LG.Philips LCD Co., Ltd., five subsidiaries of LG
Innotec Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of LG Micron Ltd. and 77 overseas subsidiaries selling and
manufacturing LGE"s products.

The primary business activities of the equity-method investees are as follows:

(1) LG.Philips Displays Holding B.V.
LG.Philips Displays Holding B.V. was incorporated in Netherlands in June 2001, 1o
manufacture and sell color braun tubes and related products.

(2) LG-Nortel Co., Ltd.
LG-Nortel Co., Ltd. was incorporated in Seoul in October 2005, to manufacture and sell
communication equipment.

(3) Hankuk Electric Glass Co., Ltd.
Hankuk Electric Glass Ca., Ltd. was incorporated in Gumi in May 1974, to manufacture and
sell glasses related to color braun tube and computer monitors.

(4) Paju Electric Glass Co., Ltd.
Paju Electric Glass Co., Ltd. was incorporated in Paju in January 2003, to manufacture and
sell glass products.

(5) Other equity method investees
Other than the above, there are other 20 equity method investees consisting of two domestic
investees and 18 overseas investees.

A summary of financial data of the major consolidated subsidiaries as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2007, prior to the elimination of intercompany transactions, follows:

(i miflions of Kovean won) Tuotal assels Total liabilities Net assets Sales Met income (loss)
LG.Philips LCD Co., Led, ' WooO13,779.835 W 5490376 W 5.289.459 W 1435196 W 1,344,027
LG Innotek Co., Ltd, ' 803,394 547482 255 %2 1,697,547 25,259
LG Micron Lid. ' onad13 568938 340475 715,087 (38,812)
Hi Plaza Ine.” 190,406 72,062 118,344 743,357 1,96
LG Electronics USA Inc.” 1062007 BO1,060 170,947 3,704,056 20,587
LG Electronics UK, Lid.* 258,289 242,334 15,955 1.024,336 7,290
Others® 17.581.083 [3.544.22] 3.6360.862 31189792 (131,390
Total W 34584427 W 21,756473 WIZB27.954 W 53426741 W 1,225,922

Financial data are based on consolidated financial statements.
Financial data are based on non-consohdated financial statements.
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LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies followed by the Company in the preparation of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements are summarized as follows:

Basis of Consolidated Financial Statement Presentation

The Company maintains its official accounting records in Korean won and prepares statutory
consolidated financial statements in the Korean language in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. Certain accounting principles applied by the
Company that conform with financial accounting standards and accounting principles in the
Republic of Korea may not conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other
countries, Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements are intended for use by those who
are informed about Korean accounting principles and practices. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been condensed, restructured and translated into English from the
Korean language consolidated financial statements, Certain information attached to the Korean
language financial statements, but not required for a fair presentation of the Company's financial
position, results of operations or cash flows, is not presented in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company in the
preparation of its financial statements, These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

In 2007, the Company adopted the following new Statements of Korean Financial Accounting
Standards (SKFAS) issued by the Korea Accounting Standards Board:

=  SKFAS No. 19, Leases (A5 Revised)

*  SKFAS No. 21, Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements 1

*  SKFAS No. 22, Share-Based Compensation

*  SKFAS No. 23, Earnings Per Share

«  SKFAS No. 25, Consolidated Financial Statemenis

*  Korea Accounting Institute Opinion 06-2, Deferred Income Taxes on Investments in
Subsidiaries, Associates and Interests in Joint Ventures

«  Korea Accounting Institute Opinion 07-1, dpplving SKFAS No. 11, Discontinuing
Operations to Demerger,

«  Financial Supervisory Service’s Accounting Implementation Guide [2006-5], dccounting
Treatment of Non-Listed Equity Securities

In accordance with SKFAS No. 21, Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements [ and
SKFAS No. 25, Consolidated Financial Statement, the Company classified its capital adjustments
account into capital adjustments and accumulated other comprehensive income and expense, and
also disclosed the details of its comprehensive income in the notes to the financial statements. In
addition, the Company disclosed its earnings per share on the face of its statements of income.
According to SKFAS No. 25, the Company classified net income into controlling interest net
income and minority interest net income and disclosed on the face of its statements of income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Certain prior year accounts, presented herein for comparative purposes, have been reclassified to
conform to current year's financial statement presentation. Such reclassification does not impact

the net income or net assets reported in the prior year.

The Company applied the Korea Accounting Institute Opinion 06-2. The prior year financial
statements, presented herein for comparative purposes, have been restated to reflect the changes in

accordance with SKFAS No. 1.

The effects of the change on significant accounts tor the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,

are as follows:

2006 Before
(in millions of Korean won except per share amounts)

Deferred income tax assets (current) W 200,372
Deferred income tax

liabilities {non-current) 58,062
Capital surplus 2,704,897
Accumulated other comprehensive

income 78,605
Unappropriated retained earnings 2,590,094
Income tax benefit (186,926)
Controlling interest net income 233,909
Basic earnings per share 1.447
Diluted earnings per share 1,447

2005 Before

(in millions of Korean won except per share amounts)

Deferred income tax assets (current) W 227417
Deferred income tax

liabilities {non-current) 114,563
Capital surplus 2,595,157
Accumulated other comprehensive

income (loss) 06,522
Unappropriated retained earnings 2,580,796
Income tax expense (benefit) (47.735)
Controlling interest net income 605,562
Basic earnings (loss) per Share 3.797
Diluted earnings (loss) per Share 3,766

Principles of Consolidation

Adjustments

W 33,680

204,361
(165,266)

5.601
(11.016)
(11,294)
11,294
70
70

Adjustments

W 48,871

251,151
(165,266)

(14,704)
(22,310)
5,764
(5.764)
(36)
(35)

After

W 234,052

262,423
2,539,631

84,206
2,579,078
(198,220)
245,203
1,517
1.517

After

W 276,288

365,714
2,429,891

81,818
2,558,486
(41.971)
599,798
3,761
3,731

The fiscal year end of the consolidated subsidiaries is the same as that of the Controlling Company.
Differences in accounting policy between the Controlling Company and consolidated subsidiaries

are adjusted during consolidation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LGE and its
subsidiaries. Under the financial accounting standards for consolidated financial statements in the
Republic of Korea, a company is regarded as a subsidiary of another if more than 50% of its issued
share capital is held by the other company, or more than 30% of its issued share capital is held by
the other company and that company is the largest shareholder. In cases where there are two or
three investors with more than 30% ownership in the issued share capital of an investee and such
investors, individually, are the largest shareholders, the investor, which belongs to a conglomerate
along with the investee as defined by Monopoly Regulation and Fair Trade Act in the Requblic of
Korea, is required to consolidate such investee. Investments in 20% to 50% owned affiliated
companies or investments in affiliated companies over which the Company exerts a significant
influence are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the original

investment is recorded at cost and adjusted by the Company's share in the undistributed eamings or
losses of these companies.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances with consolidated subsidiaries have been
eliminated during consolidation.

To eliminate the investiment account of the controlling company and corresponding capital
accounts of subsidiaries, the purchase method or the pooling of interest method is applied.
depending on the nature of the transaction. In using the purchase method, when the Company has a
control over a subsidiary, the Company records differences between the initial investment accounts
and corresponding capital accounts of subsidiaries as goodwill or negative goodwill, which is
amortized over five years using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, which
range from five to ten years. When the Company has a significant influence over equity method
investees, differences between the initial investment accounts and corresponding capital accounts
of equity method investees are also amortized over five vears using the straight-line method.

Unrealized profit included in inventories, property, plant and equipment and other assets as a result
of intercompany transactions is eliminated. Unrealized profit arising from sales by the controlling
company o consolidated subsidiaries or equity method investees is fully eliminated and charged to
the equity of the controlling company. Unrealized profit, arising from sales by the consolidated
subsidiaries or equity method investees to the controlling company or sales between consolidated
subsidiaries or equity method investees, is fully eliminated and charged to the equity of the
controlling company and minority interest based on the percentage of ownership ratio.

The Company records the equity of the consolidated subsidiaries, which 1s not included in the
equity of the controlling company, as a minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries. In addition,
if losses of the consolidated subsidiaries included in minority interest are in excess ol minaority
interest, the deficit in excess of minority interest is deducted from shareholders® equity as a
negative minority interest.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits arising in the ordinary course of the Company’s
activities and is measured as the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the said ordinary course of the Company’s activities. Revenue is shown as
net of value-added tax, sales discounts and sales returns. The Company recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, and it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow into the Company.

Revenue from the sale of goods are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of goods are transferred to the buyer. Revenue from installation service contracts is
recognized using the percentage- of-completion method.
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Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized
when the rights to receive such dividends and amounts thereof are determined. Royalty income is
recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of relevant contracts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks, and financial instruments with
maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase. These financial instruments are readily
convertible into cash without significant transaction costs and bear low risks from changes in value
due to interest rate fluctuations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and notes receivable. Allowances are
calculated based on the estimates made through a reasonable and objective method.

Inventories

The quantities of inventories are determined using the perpetual method and periodic inventory
count, while the costs of inventories are determined using the weighled-average method, except for
inventories in-transit which is determined using the specific identification method. Inventories are
stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expense. Replacement cost is
used for the estimate of net realizable value of raw materials. If, howewver. the circumstances which
caused the valuation loss cease to exist, the valuation loss is reversed up to the original carrying
amount before valuation. The said reversal is deducted from cost of sales.

In 2006, the Controlling Company changed its method of determining the cost of inventory from
the yearly-average cost method to the monthly-average cost method. The cumulative effect from
the change in accounting policy could not be reasonably estimated. Accordingly, the effect of the
change was accounted for prospectively.

Investment in Securities

Costs of securities are determined using the moving-weighted average method. Investments in
equity securities or debt securities are classified into trading securities, available-for-sale securities
and held-to-maturnity securities, depending on the acquisition and holding purpose. Investments in
equity securities of companies, over which the Company exercises a significant control or
influence, are recorded using the equity method of accounting. Trading securities are classified as
current assets while available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securities are classitied as
long-term investments, excluding those securities that mature or are certain to be disposed of
within one year, which are then classified as current assets,

Held-to-maturity securities are measured at amortized cost while available-for-sale and trading
securities are measured at fair value. However, non-marketable securities, classified as available-
for-sale securities, are carried at cost when the fair values are not readily determinable.

Gains and losses related to trading securities are recognized in the income statement, while
unrealized gains and losses of available-for-sale securities are recognized under other
comprehensive income and expense, Realized gains and losses of available-for-sale securities are
recognized in the income statement.
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Equity Method Investments

Investees over which the Company can exercise significant influence should reflect any changes in
equity after the initial purchase date. Under the equity method, the Company records changes in its
proportionate ownership in the book value of the investee in current operations, as capital

adjustments or as adjustments to retained eamnings, depending on the nature of the underlying
change in the book value of the investee. All other changes in equily should be accounted for

under other comprehensive income and expense.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes acquisition cost, production cost

and other costs required to prepare the asset for its intended use.

Property, plant and equipment are stated net of accumulated depreciation calculated based on the

following depreciation method and estimated useful lives:

Estimated useful life

Buildings

Structures

Machinery and equipment
Tools

Vehicles

Others

5 - 40 years
20 - 40 years
4 - 10 years
2 -5 years

4 - 5 years

3 -5 years

Expenditures incurred afier the acquisition or completion of assets are capitalized if they enhance
the value of the related assets over their recently appraised value or extend the useful life of the
related assets. Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost, which includes acquisition cost, production cost and other costs
required to prepare the asset for its intended use. Intangible assets are stated net of accumulated
amortization calculated based on using the following depreciation method and estimated useful

lives:

Estimated Useful Lives Depreciation Methods
Goodwill 5 - 10 years Straight-line method
Industrial property rights 5 - 10 years Straight-line method
Development cost 4 - 5 years Straight-line methed
Other intangible assets 4 - 25 years Straight-line method

Development costs which are individually identifiable and directly related to a new technology or
to new products which carry probable future benefits are capitalized as intangible assets.
Amortization of development cost begins at the commencement of the commercial production of

the related products or use of the related technology.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Company’s
share in the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition.
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Non-Capitalization of interest expense

The Company expenses interest expense incurred on borrowings used to finance the cost of
manufacturing, acquisition, and construction of inventory and property, plant. and equipment that
require more than one year to complete from the initial date of manufacture, acquisition, and
construction.

Impairment of assets

When the book value of an asset is significantly greater than its recoverable value due to
obsolescence, physical damage or an abrupt decline in the market value of the asset, the said
decline in value is deducted from the book value to agree with recoverable amount and is
recognized as an asset impairment loss for the period. When the recoverable value subsequently
exceeds the book value, the impairment amount is recognized as gain for the period to the extent
that the revised book value does not exceed the book value that would have been recorded without
the impairment. Reversal of impairment of goodwill is not allowed.

Derivatives

All derivative instruments are accounted for at their fair value according to the rights and
obligations associated with the derivative contracts. The resulting changes in fair value of
derivative instruments are recognized either under the income statement or sharcholders’ equity,
depending on whether the derivative instruments qualify as a cash flow hedge. Fair value hedge
accounting is applied to a derivative instrument purchased with the purpose of hedging the
exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset or a liability or a firm commitment that is
attributable to a particular risk. The resulting changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognized under the shareholders™ equity under
accumulated other comprehensive income and expense.

Income tax and deferred income tax

Income tax expense includes the current income tax under the relevant income tax law and the
changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities represent temporary
differences between financial reporting and the tax bases of assets and liabilities, Deferred tax
assets are recognized for temporary differences which will decrease future taxable income or
operating loss to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax effects applicable to items in the
shareholders’ equity are directly reflected in the shareholders’ equity.

Convertible Bonds

The Company records the equity component of the convertible bonds (conversion rights) by
deducting the fair value of the liability component from the proceeds. The liability component is
shown as gross amount recorded as liability with a contra account (conversion rights adjustment)
as a deduction from the liability to arrive at a net amount equal to its fair value. The Company is
obligated to pay the guaranteed interest upon maturity without conversion and accrues this interest
as an adjustment to the carrying value of the liability component.

Discounts on debentures

Discounts on debentures are amortized over the term of the debentures using the effective interest
rate method. Amortization of the discount is recorded as part of interest expense.
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Accrued severance benefits

Employees and directors with at least one year of service are entitled to receive a lump-sum
payment upon termination of their employment with LGE and its domestic subsidiaries, based on
their length of service and rate of pay at the time of termination. Accrued severance benefits
represent the amount which would be payable assuming all eligible employees and divectors were
to terminate their employment as of the balance sheet date.

The Company has partially funded the accrued severance benefits through severance insurance
deposits with an insurance company. Deposits made by the Company are recorded as deductions
from accrued severance benefits. Also, the Company deposits certain portion severance benefits

to National Pension Service according to National Pension Law. The deposit amount is recorded as
deduction from accrued severance benefits.

Owverseas subsidiaries acerue emplovees’ retirement benefits according to the local regulations in
which they operate.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

When there is a probability that an outflow of economic benefits will occur due to a present
obligation resulting from a past event, and whose amount is reasonably estimable, a corresponding
amount of provision is recognized in the financial statements. However, when such outflow is
dependent upon a future event, is not certain to occur, or cannot be reliably estimated, a disclosure
regarding the contingent liability is made in the notes to the financial statements,

Translation of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Korean won at
the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date, and the resulting translation gains and
losses are recognized in current operations.

Share-hased payments

For cash-settled share-based payment. the fair value of the obligation the Company will assume is
determined by the fair value of the goods or employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the options. Until the liability is settled, the Company is required to measure the fair value at
balance sheet date and at settlement date. The change in fair value is recognized as an expense,

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock are stated at cost and recorded as a capital adjustment in shareholders™ equity. Gains
on disposal of treasury stock are recorded as a capital surplus. Any loss on disposal of treasury
stock is offset against any prior gains included in capital surplus. The remaining loss is offset
against retained carnings.

Sale of Accounts and Notes Receivable

The Company sells certain accounts or notes receivable to financial institutions at a discount, and
accounts for the transactions as a sale of the receivables, if the rights and obligations relating to the
receivables are substantially transferred to the buyers. The losses from the sale of the receivables
are charged to current operations as incurred.

Duty Refunds
The Company records duty refunds as a deduction from cost of sales.
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Lease Transactions

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset. The annual minimum lease payments, less guaranteed residual value, are
charged to expense on a regular basis over the lease term.

Government grants

Government grants received, which are to be repaid, are recorded as liability, while grants without
obligation to be repaid are offset against cost of assets purchased with such grants. Grants received
for a specific purpose are offset against the specific expense for which it was granted, and other
grants are recorded as a gain for the period.

Reconciliation of the differences in accounting policies

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the following adjustments were made on the equity method
investees to reconcile the differences in accounting policies between the Company and equity
method investees:

Ui millions of Kevean won) Adjustment Amount

LG.Philips LCD Cao., Lid. Adjustment capitalized interest cxpense to cxpense as incurred W 38,908

LG Holdings (HK) Lid, Adjustment capitalized interest expense to expense as incumed 19465

Subsidiary of LG Holdings (HK) Lid,  Adjustment capitalized interest expense to expense as incurred 2,924
3. Financial Instruments

4.

As of December 31, 2007, short-term financial instruments of W48,387 million (2006 : W43,067
million), and long-term financial instruments of ¥53,539 million (2006 : %99,159 million) are
deposited in connection with maintaining checking accounts, various short-term borrowings and
long-term debts, and research and development projects funded by the government, The
withdrawal of these financial instruments is restricted.

Short-term investments
Short-term investments as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consist of the following:

{in millions of Kovean won) 2007 2006

Government bonds W 3249 W 747

24



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

5. Receivables

Receivables, including trade accounts and notes receivable, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
consist of the following:

2007 20046

Allowance Allowance

Original for doubiiul Original for doubtful
(i mitlions of Kovean won) amaunt accounts Carrying value amount accounts Carrying value

Trade sceounds and notes

receiviable W 5535476 W (151,527 WoOS3RIM9 W 4191975 W {133,146) W 4058829
Other accounts receivable 1,157,655 {65605 1092 050 78,827 [57.908) 820919
Accred income 33,190 (821) 42,369 66,541 {5435) 65,9%
Advances 135215 (3281 131,934 114,392 (3,179 111,213
Short-tenm loans receivable 22,272 {1,360 20,911 23,782 {1.423) 22,359
Long-term loans receivable 102,648 {14150 101,558 118,866 {1.061] 117805

W 7.036.456 W (223685) W GBIZTVI W 5,394,383 W O(197.262) W 5197121

As of December 31, 2007, trade bills negotiated through banks that have not yet matured amount
to approximately W3,492,370 million. The ¥ 3,042,523 million in trade bills to overseas
subsidiaries were accounted as for short-term borrowings during consolidation (Notes 13 and 17).

In accordance with the Asset Securitization Law, on May 18, 2006, the Controlling Company
entered into a sales contract with LG Eleetronics 2nd Securitization Specialty L.L.C to transfer its
trade receivables amounting to W190,000 million. Through the asset-backed securitization of trade
receivables, the Company acquired the 2nd-class beneficiary certificate of W 88,420 million
included under the trade accounts receivable as of December 31, 2007,

The Controlling Company entered into accounts receivable selling program with Societe General
Bank. The Controlling Company sells the accounts receivable of six subsidiaries, namely, LG
Electronics UK., Ltd.. LG Electronics Deutschland .GmbH, LG Electronics Espana S.A., LG
Goldstar France S.A.R.L.. LG Electronics Benelux and LG Electronics Italia $.P.A, on a revolving
basis, of up to US$853 million. As of December 31, 2007, the outstanding balance of securitized
accounts receivable held by the third party conduits totaled W 1,427,750 million.

The Controlling Company entered into accounts receivable selling program with JP Morgan Chase
Bank and Sumitomo Bank. The Controlling Company sells the accounts receivable of two
subsidiaries, namely, LG Electronics U.S.A., Inc. and LG Electronics MobileComm U.5.A. Ine.,
on a revolving basis, of up to US$400 million. As of December 31, 2007, the outstanding balance
of securitized accounts receivable held by the third party conduits totaled 654,871 million.

et
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In October 2006, LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into a five-year accounts
receivable selling program with Standard Chartered Bank. The Company sells accounts receivable
of four subsidiaries, namely, LG.Philips LCD America Inc., LG.Philips LCD Germany GmbH,
LG.Philips LCD Shanghai Co., Ltd. and LG.Philips LCD Hong Kong Co., Ltd., on a revolving
basis, of up to US$600 million. The Controlling Company joined this program in April 2007. As
of December 31, 2007, there are no accounts receivable (2006 : W185,633 million). Losses,
including the loss on disposal of accounts receivable, and various program and facility fees
associated with the Program totaled approximately % 6,053 million for the year ended December
31, 2007 (2006 : W2,458 million).

In September 2004, LG. Philips LCD Co., Lid., a subsidiary, entered into a tive-year accounts
receivable securitization program (the “Program™) with ABN AMRO-Taipei Branch and ABN
AMRO-Tokyo Branch, The Program allows the Company to sell, on a revolving basis, an
undivided interest up to US$350 million in eligible accounts receivables of four subsidiaries,
namely, LG.Philips LCD America Inc. (“LPLA"), LG.Philips LCD Germany GmbH (*LPLG™),
LG .Philips LCD Japan Co., Ltd. (*LPLJ") and LG.Philips LCD Taiwan Co., Ltd. (“"LPLT™). Asof
December 31, 2007, there is no outstanding balance of securitized accounts receivable held by the
third party conduits (2006; W364,785 million), Losses. including the loss on sale of receivables,
and various program and facility fees associated with the Program totaled approximately W9,680
million for the year ended December 31, 2007 (2006: W 15,509 million),

In June 2006, LG.Philips LCD Shanghai Co., Ltd. (“LPLSH™), a subsidiary of LG, Philips LCD
Co., Ltd., entered into an accounts receivable selling program with Standard Chartered Bank for up
to US$200 million. As of December 31, 2007, there are no non-maturing accounts receivable sold
(2006 : W41.,914 million). Losses, including the loss on sale of receivables, and various programs
and facility fees associated with the program totaled approximately W434 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007 (2006: W 542 million).

In September 2006, LG.Philips LCD Taiwan Co., Ltd.. a subsidiary of LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd.,
entered into accounts receivable selling program with ChinaTrust Bank and another bank of up to
USE505 million. As of December 31, 2007, there are no non-maturing accounts receivable sold
(2006: W112,715 million). Losses, including the loss on sale of receivables, and various program
and facility fees associated with the Program totaled approximately 3,121 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007 (2006: W2.423 million).
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6. Inventories

Inventories as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consist of the following:

fin millions of Korean won)

Merchandise and finished products
Work-in-process
Raw materials and supplies

her

fin miflions of Kovean won)

Merchandise and finished products
Waork-in-procuss
Raw materials and supplies

Other

o7

Inventory valuation

Acquisition cost allowanee Carrving value
W 3,331,623 W (75.795) W 3255828
443,612 i3.460) 440,152
|.B33,556 (27,613} 1,825,943
196,407 {10,070 186,337
LU 5,825,198 W {116,938) W 5,708,260
2006

Inventory valuation

Acquisition cost allowance Carrying value
W 3,457,532 W (74,115) W 3383417
626,744 (6,564} 620,180
1.646,977 (39.559) 1607418
198,385 (14.381) 184,004
W 5,929,638 W i(134,619) W 5795019

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recorded no ramp-up cost (2006: ¥ 18,043

million) to counter the unusual low volume of production,

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the inventories are insured against various property risks.

7. Investment Securities

Investment securities as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

(in millions of Korean won)

Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities

=7

2007 2006
W 41.796 W 55,668
636 941
W 42,482 W 56,609
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Available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

2007 2006
fin millions of Korean won)
Marketable equity securitics
Nara Mold & Die Co., Ltd. W 4,195 W 4,016
ADP Engineering Co., Ltd, 4,084 3,247
Digital Device, Inc.” = 106
Tovis Co., Ltd.* 1.467 =
0,746 7,369
Non-marketable equity securities
Domestic companies
Innopla Co., Lid. 245 245
Castec Korea Co., Ltd.* - 182
AL Tech Inc.* - 589
Association of Electronics Environment ' - 4,698
Netgenetech. Co., Ltd.? - 176
Manager Society, Inc.” - 200
TU Media Corp. ' 627 6,500
ADS Technologies Co., Ltd.* . 150
NARA M Tech, Inc. 597 597
C&M, Inc. 400 400
System Air-Con Engineering Ltd. * - 338
Dhgital World Corporation 138 4
Quantum Device Inc.” 400 -
Hyundai IT* 12 -
ATMS Co., Ltd.? - 938
JALogics Inc. 632 632
Others 19,937 13,854
Overseas companies
COMMIT Incorporated - 4,990
Sunpower Inc. 1,257 1,257
CMEA Tl Venture Fund 1,377 5 1
Caspian bank 030 930
Others 2,579 6,770
29,131 44,827
Debt securities
Bonds issued by the government * 631 23
Convertible bonds issued by NeoDis Co., Ltd. - 665
Convertible bonds issued by Pentamicro Ine. - 131
Convertible bonds issued by Tovis Co., Ltd. * 265 -
Others 2,023 2,653
2919 3,472
W 41,796 W 55,668
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1
of December 31, 2007,

In 2007, the Company sold the investment securities.

Ll

In 2007, NeoDis Co., Ltd. merged with Tovis Co., Ltd

In 2007, the investments were reclassified as equity method invesiments.

New or additional investments were made during the year ended December 31, 2007,

Carrying value was fully written down due to the negative net book value or bankruptey of the investee as

The annual maturities of debt securities classified as available-for-sale securities and held-to-
maturity securities as of December 31, 2007 and 20006, are as follows:

fin milfions af Korvean wan) 2007 2006

Maturi Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity  Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity

' &y securities securities securities securities

Ower one year to five years W 2819 W 656 W 3472 W 897

Ower five yvears to ten years - - - 44
W 2919 W 686 W 3,472 W 041

The details of changes in accumulated gains (losses) on valuation of available-for-sale securities as
recorded as capital adjustments for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

fin millions of Korean weon) January 1, 2007 Gain {loss) Disposal Tax effect  December 31, 2007
Nara Mold & Die Co., Ltd. w2322 W 179 W - W @49 Wo2,452
ADP Enginecring Co., Ltd, 2,300 837 = (2300 2,907
Digital Device, Ine. (89) z 89 . "
Tovis Can, Lidd - (739) - 179 (56(0)

W 4,533 W 217 W &4 Woom Wo4,799

{in millions of Korean won) January 1, 2006  Gain (loss) Disposal Tax effect  December 31, 2006
Mara Mold & Die Co., Lud. W 3,100 WLoTy W - W 203 W 2322
Ordicorp Co., L, 208 S {1,801) 341
ADP Engineering Co., Ltd, 5,740 (4.745) - 1,305 2,300
Digital Device, Ine. (1) [ 10Ar) - an (B9}
105, 3145 - (4,338) 1,193 -
Others (1.965) 1,965 745 {745) =

Wo10908 W3.398 W (539 W 2417 W 4,533

The fair values of non-marketable equity securities for Planet and other 23 companies, could not be

reliably estimated due to the lack of financial information of the said companies. Accordingly,
these equities were presented at their total acquisition cost of ¥9,363 million.
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8. Equity-Method Investments

Equity-method investments as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

Percentage of ownership
(¥l at
i miffions of Kerean woi) December 31, 2007
Domestic companies
Hankuk Electric Glass Co., Ltd. 2000

Innovation nvestment Fund
{Formerly Blue Ocean Investment Association)® 8333

LG -Mortel Co., Lid 5010
Paju Electric Glass Co., Lid, 400041
Korea Information Certificate Authority lnc.® 927
System Air-Con Engineering Lid. ** 100400
Overseas companies

Hitachi-LG Data Storage Ine, (HLDS) 45,00
L& Electronics Ausiria GmbH (LGEAG) " 100,00
LG Electronics Argentina 5.A. (LGEAR) 1000
LG Electronics Egypt Caim 5. A E. (LGEEC) 10000
LG Mitr Electronics Co., Lid, (LGEMT) ™7 100
LG Electronics Antwerp Logistics M.V

(LGEAL}YY 00000

LG Electronics Middle East Co., Ltd. (LGEME} ®  100.00
LG Electronics Mohile Research ULS.A, LLC

(LGEMR}® 10400
L& Electronics Ukraine Co., Lid {LGEUR) [[EAREN]
LG Electronics Wroclaw Sp.Zo.o. (LGEWR) 10000

LG Electronics Wales Lud, (LGEW &) ™7 F0X, 00
LG Philips Displays Holding BV ° 54,061
Electromagnetica Goldstor 5.R.L * Sk
SLD Telecom Ple, Lud, 2537
Triveni Digital Ing, * 1
LG Electronics RUS-Marketing, LLC ( LGERM) * 100,00
Hi Logistics China Company Limined 1 (W00
Hi Logistics Europe B AR
LG Pasig 38.00
LG Micron (Taiwan} Ltd. {EAELY]
LG Electmonics Latvia, LLC (LGELV)" 103000
LG SHAKER CO LTD (LGESR)’ 4004
LG Electromics Alrica

Logistics FZE (LGEAF)® [LCIREL

2007 206

Acquisition  MNet asset Carrving  Acquisition Met asset Carrying

cosi value value cost value value
Wor19282 W Ea0I0 W R26DE W 119282 W 102545 W 94141
= 5 = 10,0060 [LEAETL [[EATEH
153,254 240,516 231.934 153254 180,302 | 68,989
14,400 25431 24705 14 400 2651 19,284
1,852 1B 1941 1.852 La07 I 446
1534 | 554 |,554 = = .
290,642 355,701 343.041 298,788 35485 295,864
7684 IT118 32,088 T.h84 24,058 20 801
- - % 5003 1,770 7.281
16,882 3420 4,125 TAlD - -
4,382 2 RR2 2 R52 4382 2410 2378
23 899 5774 1920 - - -
WhT 1,303 1,305 - - -
462 462 462 462 4462 462
. . 3 2 (006 1,428 2,026
1,041 101 B0 1,041 041 1,041
- - - 55364 58,218 53,405
1,073,020 - - - - -
1,508 597 (3012.780) - 1,509 997 (312,7800 -
508 S8 508 S8 508 508
72,194 42,691 42 805 72,194 45,750 47.067
104 BO9 E99 R b 890
2w il 204 204 204 204
5.051 53590 5404 5,151 4,834 4434
2340 3363 3,363 2340 2576 2576
1 - - 1 - =
150 126 126 150 27 27
% z 4936 4,936 4936
4 A 4496 4 496 4,496 4. 4% 4 450
759 759 759 7549 750 759
2724042 (212344} 102,341 1,686,003 {149,104} 163, 100
Woanldasd W 143357 W 445402 W LOR4.791 W 166381 W 458,960

The equity method of accounting has been suspended due to the investee’s accumulated losses.

assets as of the previous vear end amounted to less than W 7,000 million, or which have just been
established during the year, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic

of Korea,
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The Company purchased additional shares of these subsidiaries in 2007.

The operations of this subsidiary were suspended as of December 31, 2007,

The equity method was suspended for investments in small-sized subsidiaries and affiliates whose total
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*  They were reclassified from available-for-sale securities in 2007,

They were reclassified from an equity-method investee to a consolidated subsidiary in 2007,
They were reclassified from a consclidated subsidiary to an equity-method investee in 2007,

Since the Company can exercise a significant Control over the Korea Information Certificate Authority
Inc.. it is classified as an equity method investment instead of available-for-sale securities.

The equity method of accounting is applied based on the affiliates’ most recent available financial
statements, some of which have not been audited.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the details of changes in differences between the initial
purchase price and the Company’s initial proportionate ownership in the net book value of the
investee are as follows:

fia mitltons of Kovean won) January 1, 2007 Addition Amortization  December 31, 2007

Domestic companies

Hankuk Electric Glass Co., Lid, W (6.804) W - W 3402 W {3.402)
LG-Nortel Co., Ltd ill - (82} 229
(6.403) - 3320 3.173)

Overseas companies
LG Electronics Egypt Cairo 5.AE. (LGEEC) 449 - {449} =
SLD Telecom Pre, Lid. il - {196} 115
Tal - 1645} 115
W (5733) W - W 2,675 W [3.058)

Positive numbers represent goodwill while negative numbers represent negative goodwill,

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the details of changes in differences between the initial
purchase price and the Company’s initial proportionate ownership in the net book value of the
investee are as follows:

(i mitlions af Kovean vion) January 1, 2006 Addition Amortization  December 31, 2006

Domestic companies

Hankuk Electric Glass Co,, Lid, W (10206) W - W 3402 W {6,804)
LG-MNortel Ca., Lud 393 - (82 31

{9,813 - 3320 {6,493)

Overseas companies -

LG Electronics Egypt Cairo 5.AE, (LGEEC) 1,049 - {600 449
SLD Telecom Pre. Ltd. 507 - {196} il
1,556 - {796) Tl

W (8.257) W - W 2,54 W (5,733)

Positive numbers represent goodwill while negative numbers represent negative goodwill.
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For the year ended December 31, 2007, the details of the elimination of unrealized gain or loss

arising from intercompany transactions according to the equity method of accounting are as
follows:

Property,
{in millions of Kavean wan) Inventories plant and equipment Total
Domestic companies
LG-Nortel Co.. Lid. W (52) W 2,865 W 2.813
Paju Electric Glass Co., Lid. (726) - (726)
(T78) 2,865 2087
Owverseas companies
LG Electronics Egypt Cairo 3.AE. (LGEEC) 53 - 53
LG Electronics Antwerp Logistics NV (LGEAL) 207 - 207
Hitachi-LG Data Storage Inc. (HLDS) (474) - (474)
(214) £ (214
W [(992) W 2,865 W 1,873

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the details of the elimination of unrealized gain or loss
arising from intercompany transactions according to the equity method of accounting were as
follows:

Property,
i millions of Korean won) Inventories plant and equipment Taotal
Domestic companies
Hankuk Electric Glass Co., Lid. W 3 W - W k]
LG-Morte]l Co., Ltd, 207 2865 4 882
Paju Electric Glass Co., Lud. (1,347 - {1,347)
673 2,865 3,538
Overseas companies
LG Electronics Egypt Cairo 5. A E (LGEEC) {83) - (83)
LG Electronics Ausiria GmbH (LGEAG) (8] = 18]
Hitachi-LG Data Storage Ine. (HLDS) [EL1] = {40
LG Electronics Wroclaw Sp.Zo.o, (LGEWR) (4,076} {1,047 (5,123)
(4.207) {1.047) (5,254)
W (3.534) W 1,818 W (1,716)
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Changes in investments in subsidiaries and affiliates accounted for using the equity method for the
year ended December 31, 2007, are as follows:

fin mitfions of Kovean wan)

Domestic companies
Hinkuk Electne Glass Co., Lid.

Innovation Investment Fund

{formerly Blue Ocean Investiment Association)

LG-Mortel Co., Lid

Paju Electne Glass Co., Lud.

Fooren Information Certificate Authority Inc.
System Air-Con Engineering Lid.

Owverseas companics

Hitachi-LG Data Storage Ine. (HLDS)

LG Electromcs Austna GmbH (LGEAG)

LG Electromics Argenting S A, (LGEAR)

LG Electronics Egypt Cairo S AE.{LGEEC)

LG Mitr Electromics Co., Lid. (LGEMT)
LG Electronics Antwerp Logistics NV

{LGEAL)

LG Electronics Middle East Co., Ltd. (LGEME}

LG Electronics Mobile Besearch US. AL LLC
{ LGEMR)

LG Electronics Ukmme Co., Lul (LGEUR)

LG Electromics Wroclaw Sp.Zoo, (LGEWR)

Electromagnetica Galdstar 5. R.L

SLD Telecom Pre. Lid.

Triveni Digital Inc.

LG Electronics RUS-Marketing, LLC {LGERM)

Hi Logistics Chia Company Limited
Hi Logistics Europe BV,

L Pasig

LG Macron| Taiwan) Led,

LG Electromics Latvia, LLC {LGELV)
LG-SHAKER Co., Lid (LGESR)

LG Electronics Afrvica Logistics FEZE (LGEAF)

consclidated subisidiaries.

Equity in earnings

(losses) of December 31,
January 1, 2007 affiliates, net Others ! 2007
W fa,141 W (12,540 W (993 W R2.608
10000 - {10,000 -
| 68,089 63350 (405 231934
19,254 46l {1,439 24,703
1,446 510 (16) 1,940
i = | 554 1 54
2495 840 S8, LR { 10,94949) 343041
28301 4,030 (1, 743) 32088
7.281 {7,281}
- (2146} 4341 4,125
2378 54 118 2.B52
1.926 1,926
3 184 1119 1,303
462 462
2,026 - (2,026) -
1041 - - 1,041
53,805 = [53,805) -
508 - 508
47067 (4,604 442 42,805
L1 - - 09
204 - 20
4,834 163 4007 504
2,576 417 370 3,363
= (2} 2
27 a7 2 126
44936 - {4,936)
4406 : . 4,49
759 - 129
163,100 365 (61.104) 102,361
W 458,90 W 58,545 W (72.103) W 445,402
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Includes changes resulting from acquisitions, disposals. dividends, capital adjustment and changes in
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Changes in investments in subsidiaries and affiliates accounted for using the equity method for the
year ended December 31, 2006, were as follows:

fin milltons of Kovean won)

Domestic companics

Hankuk Electric Glass Co., Lid.

LG fund for small and medium Enterprises
Blue Ocean Investment Fund

Lo-Mortel Co., Lid

Paju Electric Glass Co., Lid

Korea Information Centificate Authority Inc,

Owerseas companics

Goldstar Electronics Thailand Co., Lid. {G.5.T.)

Hitachi-LG Data Storage Inc, (HLDS)

LG Electronics Austria GmbH (LGEAG)

LG Elecironics Egypl Caimo S AE. (LGEEC)

LG Electienics Middle East Co.. Lul, (LGEME)

Goldstar Mobilecomm France SASU {LGEMF)

LG Electionics Mobile Research US. A LLC
(LGEMR)

.G Electronics RUS, LLC (LGERA)

LG Electromics Ukmine Co., Lid, (LGELR)

LG Electronics Wroclaw Sp.Zo.o, (LGEWR)

Electromagnetica Goldsiar 5. FLL

SLD Telecom Pre. Lid

Treveni Digital I,

LG Electronies RUS-Marketing, LLC (LGERM)

Hi Logistics Chino Company Limited

Hi Logistics Europe BV,

LG Pasig

LG Micron{ Tamwan) Lid

LG Innotek Poland Co., Lid.

1.G Electronics Latvia, LLC {LGELY)

LG-SHAKER Co., Lud. ( LGESE)

LG Electromics Alnea Logistics FZE (LGEAF)

consolidated subisidiaries.

Janoary 1, 2006

Equity in earnings
(losses) of
affiliates, ner

December 31,

Others '

e

W 111087 W (14,192) W (754) W 96,141
5,00K) {5.000) -
5,000 500000 L0 0000
130,560 15290 12% 168 989
14,156 5,129 (1) 19,284

(351} 1.827 1446
265,403 24,546 1,211 245,860
ih E (36) 2
30,643 4082 4.924) 29,801
5,993 1,226 62 7.281
3,144 (628) {18E) 2378
46z - 4n2
5621 - (5.621) =
2026 - - 2026
10,621 - (10.621)
1,041 . - 1041
1004 (4,004 56,805 53,805
508 : S 508
49,760 (3957 1264 47,067
L] . . R00
204 - = 204
5,089 {1uz) (63} 4,834
2304 218 49 2576
= (n 1 -
3] (120) 116 27
17 (17 -
4936 4,936
- - 4,450 4,496
= - 7549 759
119,458 (3,376} 47.018 13,10
W 385261 W 2547 W 48229 W 458,960
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A summary of financial information of major equity method investees as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2007, follows:

fin mitfions of Kovean wan) Total assets Total linbilities Sales MNet income (loss)
LG-Mortel Co.. Lid. W 1,045,232 W 564,201 W 030,639 W 121,769
Hankuk Electric Glass Co., Lid. 442 654 12,604 132,749 (79,711
Paju Electric Glass Co., Ltd. 117,347 #2203 313,773 14,329
SLD TELECOM Pte. Ltd, 191,396 23,146 : (13.420)

A summary of financial information of major equity method investees as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2006, follows:

{tn mitfiions af Kevean won) Total assets Taotal liabilities Sales MNet income (loss)
LG-MNortel Co., Lid. WoT74,162 W 413558 W Tal, 364 Wo66,980
Hankuk Electric Glass Co., Lid. 541,908 27182 242217 (38,319
Paju Electric Glass Co., Lid. 91,262 46,180 164,379 Ba]
SLD TELECOM Pte. Lid. 241,996 57,724 6,302 (14,822)
LG Electronics Wroclaw Sp.Zo.n. 270,354 211,434 83,111 1118

As of December 31, 2007, the market value of a marketable equity method investment is as
follows:

Number of shares  Market price per share  Market value Book value
owned {in won) {in millions) (in millions)

Hankuk Electric Glass Co., Lid, 1,614,675 W 34,050 W 54,980 W B2.608

The changes in the respective accumulated losses of equity method investees from which the
application of the equity method of accounting has been suspended due to their accumulated losses

for the year ended December 31, 2007, are as follows:

2007

Accumulated capital

{in mitlions of Korean won) Accumulated losses adjustment

LG. Philips Displays Holding BV W 312,780 W
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9. Property, Plant and Equipment

Changes in property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2007, are as follows:

{lar il of Korean wod

Balnnce as of
Jammary 1, 2007
Acquisitions and copital
expenditure
Transfer-in {oul)
Disposals
Deprecition
Ipairment
Others !
Balance as of

December 31, 2007

Acguisition cost

Accumulated depreciation
as of December 31, 2007

Accumulated impainnent as
of December 31, 2007

financial statements.

i anilliovs of Keréan woe)

Ralance as of
Janmary 1, 2006

Acquisitions anl capital
experditare

Trunsfer-in {out)

Disposals

Depeaciation

Tmpoirment

thers |

Balance us of
Decamber 31, 20y

Accpuisition cost

Aceumulated depreciation
as of December 31 2006

Accunmalated impairment as

Machinery and Construction-

Lami Buildings Structares equipment Vehicles Taals hihers in-progress Tuatal
WLEGRIFT  WLARETES Wo206.133 W T.EDE.J30 Wo29.551 W oe4325 0 W 46090 WL625.44% W 16,322,930
4,5 (AL 11 R4 181465 23,392 232021 242,563 |63, 383 2468303
72,012 $57.054 1,634 G507 2354 94,661 31,162 (2.018,343) {299,157)
(90,752} {31,253} (2302y (36472} (4,917 {10,741 (47.638) (3,188} {227,250
{180,145} {19,376} (3IR2452) {12,000 (363,439 {184,423} (3.842,345)
(11831} {453} {544} {35,805} {72 [1,39%) {67} {IR.69R) [74.208)
13.632 MGG {2,060 ) 1 13.42 (1,612} 12844 (143,628} {34.0MHy 63,460
WLIST.I08  WABRLA63 W 294334 W 5500475 W 36686 W 569,173 W ATRIZEY W LITS600 W 14406.331
W62 230 WIT44 Bl W 421960 W IR ThH0 WoB6.035 Wo1913466 W L6E5582 W.204,301 W 31,133,404
W WoRs2E60 WO 120083 W 13034307 W 49277 Wl 342668 W 1,236,353 W - W LhBA4B3Y
W 11931 W 493 W 544 W 38132 W s W 1624 W G40 W JE69E  W R2.434

Includes changes in consolidated subsidiaries and changes resulting from translation of foreign currency
Changes in property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2006, were as follows:
Machinery and Comstruction-
Land Bulldings Structures equipment Vehicles Tools Oihers In-progress Twal

W20RA43]  WaAsed419  WISeT2 W T.32L126 W 17068 WosIRIel W SIB08T O WILAMPA33 W 15739327
33,651 IRT.125 14,796 443,708 6,93 192,511 151375 3444, 255 4476,852
[GER: R 14,297 53441 3,276,641 4,718 130208 1l.525 (3.513.475) G003
(20.947) (17,559} 2164 [138.324) {1.941) (49,303 {35.856) (79,883} (AT A406)
(152.208) [15.413) {2500, 364) (10.384) {304,636) (VEALET) {3,566,344)
= {2.527) (224) [473) [3,226)
19,054 2EE.051 (7.229) {195,830 5119 147,490 (B985 (175182} [¥E.376)
WH9.337 W 4,528,785 Wo2ee 033 W THDRM30 W 19.55] WooeMZS W 460,920 W LG5 440 W 16,322,550
WL Ie0337  WSO02e440 W 4DD9RE W 17843600 W BSe WOL6E1348 W 1221508 W a2 449 B 3003495
W - W og97.255 W I04.83% W 10032742 W 3008 W LoTRIeT W TeRIIS W W 12708842
W W - W W X307 W - W 2h W 413 w i 3226

of December 31, XWkb

' Includes changes in consolidated subsidiaries and changes resulting from translation of foreign currency
financial statements.
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As of December 31, 2007, the value of the Company’s land located in Korea, as determined by
the local government in Korea for property tax assessment purpose, approximates W1,575.703

million (2006 : W 1,558,859 million).

The total book value of idle property. plant and equipment related to PDP Al Line is W 146,628

million,

10. Intangible Assets

Changes in intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2007, are as follows:

Industrial Other
Megative property Development intangible

{tn millions of Korean won) Goodwill goodwill rights costs aAssels Tuotal

Balance as of January 1, 2007 W 80954 W (26) W 337,001 WoOl18336 W B5.49] W 621,756
Additions 2,552 - 61,720 44283 91,010 199,565
Disposals (100) i (1,877) (65) (447) (2.489)
Amortization (22,658) 21 (52,377) (42,689) {44.871) (162,574)
Impairment|{Reversal) - - (46,9223 (8,773 (38D {56,084)
Dthers ' {409 - (LO81) 24,769 (32,864) (9,585)
Balance as of December 31, 2007 W 60,339 W (5 W 296464 W 135,861 W 97930 W 590589
Acquisition cost Wo2019179  W(lL.813) W 825835 W 453,611 W 261234 W 1,748,046
Accumulated amortization WolsER40  W(lI1,808) W 482449 W O308977 W 162535 W 1,101,013
Accumulated impairment W W W 46,921 ki 8773 W 49 W 56444

linancial statements.

Changes in intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2006, were as follows:

Includes changes in consolidated subsidiaries and changes resulting from translation of foreign currency

Industrial Other
Megative property Development  intangible

{in milficns of Korean won) Goodwill soodwill rights Ccosis assets Total

Balance as of January 1, 2006 W o076 W (233) W 334,832 W 75839 W 46232 W 558406
Adbditions 1,931 - L 10,601 36,459 74,576 243 567
Disposals (55) (24.374) (1 (1,270 (25,7000
Amartization (19,819 (1 (69,573) {31.821) (32,932) {154, 1446)
[mpairment{ Reversal ) - - B - (360} (3660}
Others ' (2,834) 208 (14485) [ 7,860 (735) (11}
Balance as of December 31, 2006 W 30,954 W (26) W 337.001 Woll833s W B549] W 621,756
Acquisition cost W 219023 W (11,813) W E76812 W 397375 W 232430 W 1713827
Accumulated amortization Wo138.060 W (11,787 W 539811 Wo279.039 W 146,579 W 1L.091,711
Accumulated impairment W - W - W W - W 36l W 36l

slatements.

a7

Includes changes in consolidated subsidiaries and changes resulting from translation of foreign currency financial



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

11.

Amortization of intangible assets was presented under manufacturing costs, and selling and
administrative expenses. Total amortization expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007
amount to W162,574 million (2006 : W 154,146 million).

The carrying value of significant intangible assets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consists of
the following:

Remaining years

(in millions of Korean won) 2007 2006 for amortization
Goodwill W 50,373 W 70,852 3 years
Industrial property rights 15,507 75,148 3 years

As a result of LG Electronics Investment Lid. (formerly LG Electronics Inc., now merged into LG
Corp.)’s merger with LG Information & Communications, Ltd. in September 2000, former LG
Electronics Ine. recognized goodwill amounting to W393,820 million and acquired industrial
property rights amounting to W578.788 million. At the time of spin-off. such goodwill and
industrial property rights were transferred to the Company. Related amortization expenses of
goodwill and industrial property rights approximate W20,479 million and W 35,884 million,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2007,

Research and development costs incurred for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, were
accounted for as follows:

{in millions of Korean won) 2007 2006
Expensed W 1,644,120 W 1.613.101
Development costs capitalized 42652 56459

W 1,686,772 W 1,669,560

Significant expenditures, which are expected to have future economic benefits but are not
capitalized in the year incurred because they are not under the Company’s control, are as follows:

fin millions of Korean won) 2007 2006
Training expenses W 62,6606 W 60,277
Advertising expenses 1,061,462 932,989
Overseas advertising expenses 169,193 210,796

W 1,293,321 W 1,204,062
Pledged Assets

A certain portion of property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2007, is pledged as
collateral for various loans from banks of up to a maximum of approximately 728,666 million
(MNotes 13 and 14).
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12. Insured Assets

As of December 31, 2007, property, plant and equipment, other than land and certain
construction in-progress, and inventories are insured against fire and other casualty losses for up
to approximately W49,020,564 million. In addition, the Company has insurance against loss

arising from the transport of goods,

13. Short-Term Borrowings and Current Maturities of Long-term Debts

Short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consist of the following:

fin militons af Kovean won) Annual interest rate (%)
at December 31, 2007 2007 2006

Bank overdrafts 4.40-11.10 W 128610 W 175347
General term loans 5.51~-6.89 I 43.34"} 211,880
Foreign currency loans ' 3.70~11.12 3,738,831 4.315.034
Commercial papers 4.70~6.98 17,210 64,449
Others 3.70~14.50 230478 264,035

W 4258478 W 5.031.265

Includes trade bills to overseas subsidiaries negotiated through banks but not yet matured as of

December 31, 2007, amounting to W3,042,523 million (2006: W 3,585,076 million) (Note 5).

Current maturities of long-term debts as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consist of the

following:

{in millions of Korean won) 2007 2006
Debentures W 430,000 W 1,217,895
Discount on debentures (1.483) (5,101}
Conversion rights adjustment - (6.848)
Premium for conversion rights - 37.092
Long-term debis 463 916 225,602

W 892433 W 1,468 640
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14. Debentures, Convertible Bonds and Long-Term Debts

Debentures and convertible bonds as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consist of the following:

fim milltans of Korean won)

Debentures
Guaranteed debentunes

Mon-guarantesd debentures
Foreign currency, guaranteed debentures of USS 200
millon in 20406

Forerign curmency, non-guaranteed debentures of 1S
1000 million (2006 U5 % 600 million)

Convertible Bonds
Zero coupon rate convertible bonds of LISE 250
million in 2006, payvable through 2007
Zero coupon rate convertible bonds of
USH 475 million in 2006, payable after 20 10
Zero coupon rate convertible bonds ol US$ 550
million {2006: nil), payable through 2012,

Less: Current maturities
Conversion rights adjustment
Premium for conversion rights

Annual interest

rate (%)
at December
31, 2007

4,81
3.50~5.89

5.00, LIBOR =
.65

2007 2006
Ww 1,000 600,000
2,490,000 2,385,000
S 185,920
1,032,020 557,760
3.523.020 3,728,680
5 204, 975
: 483,780
511,555 -
511,555 780,755
4,034,575 4,509,435
(430,000) (1,217.895)
(136,533) (103.568)
85,787 84,613
W 3,553,829 3,272,585

resulting in a W8,240 million gain on the redemption of debentures.

On May 17, 2007, convertible bonds were redeemed at the request of the bondholders,

° On September 19, 2007, the LG. Philips LCD Co,, Ltd., a subsidiary’s put option for US$459.6

million was exercised and bonds were paid on October 19, 2007, On the same date, the
Company exercised its call option to pay off the rest of convertible bonds amounting to
US$15.4 million which were paid in November 2007. For the year ended December 31, 2007,
the Company recorded a loss on redemption of debentures of W 19,216 million due to the

redemption of convertible bonds.

On April 18, 2007, LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, issued US dollar-denominated
convertible bonds totaling US$550 million, with a zero coupon rate. On or after April 19, 2008
through April 3, 2012, the bonds are convertible into commeon shares at a conversion price of

' 49,070 per share of common stock, subject to adjustment based on certain events. The bonds
will mature in five vears from the issue date and will be repaid at 116.77 % of their principal
amount at maturity. The bondholders have a put option to be repaid at 109.75 % of their principal
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amount on April 18, 2010, As of December 31, 2007, the number of non-converted common
shares is 10,464,234, LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd., is entitled to exercise a call option afier three
years from the closing date at the amount of the principal and interests, calculated at 3.125% of
the yield to maturity, from the closing date to the repayment date. The call option can be exercised
only when the market price of the common shares on each of 20 trading days in 30 consecutive
trading days ending on the trading day immediately prior to the date upon which notice of such
redemption is published exceeds at least 130% of the conversion price. In addition, in the event
that at least 90% of the initial principal amount of the bonds has been redeemed, converted, or
purchased and cancelled, the remaining bonds may also be redeemed, at the Company’s option, at
the amount of the principal and interests from the closing date to the repayment date prior to their
maturity.

Long-term debts as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consist of the following:

Annual
interest rate(%a)
fim millions) at December 31, 2007 2007 2006
Foreign In Korean Foreign
currency won currency In Korean won
Long -term debts in
won currency 4.25-6.34 - W 173757 - W 272,483
3,906,809 LSS  |.866 1,750,687  USS 1,928 1,791,939
Long-term debts in A EUR o3 268745 EUR 357 436,431
foreign currency
5.28-6.59 CNY 114 14643 CNY  g13 72,882
= Others 242548 ihers 219,772
2,450,380 2,793,507
Less: Current maturities (463.916) (235,602)
W 1,986,464 W 2567905

The non-current maturities of long-term debts outstanding as of December 31, 2007, are as
follows:

fin millions of Korean won)

For the year ending Debentures and
December 31, Long-term debts Convertible bonds Total
2009 W 509,381 W Ta1.000 W 1,270,381
20140 445,049 1.232.920 1.680.969
Thereafter 1,029,034 1.610.655 2.639 689
W 1086464 W 3,604,575 W 5,591,039
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15. Accrued Severance Benefits

Changes in accrued severance benefits for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as

follows:
fin millions of Korean won) 2007 2006
Beginning balance W 731,386 W 820,582
Severance payments (212,824) (346.,680)
Others ' 12,004 (7.812)
Provisions 371,082 265,296
001,628 731,386
Less : Deposits to the Nanonal Pension Fund {7.520) {9.571)
Severance insurance deposits (541.208) {365,809)
W 352,801 W 356,006

Includes the amounts from the absorption of a portion from transfer-in from (transfer-out to) affiliated
companies, from changes in consolidated subsidiaries and from translation of foreign currency
financial statements,

As of December 31, 2007, the severance benefits are funded at approximately 60% (2006: 50%)
through emplovee severance insurance plans with Kyobo Life Insurance Co., Ltd. and other life
insurance companies. The severance insurance deposits, which are amounts funded under
employee severance insurance plans, are presented as a deduction from acerued severance
benefits.

16. Product Warranty Reserve

Changes in the product warranty reserve for the year ended December 31, 2007, are as follows:

2007 2006
fin millions of Korean won)
Beginning balance W 348,114 W 143,075
Provisions during the vear 1,057,943 1,037,724
Actual payments (944.263) (832,685)
Ending halance W 461,794 W 348,114

As of December 31, 2007, the Company accrues product warranty reserve for the estimated costs
of future services, repairs and recalls, based on historical experience and terms of guarantees over
two years.

The Company accrues a reserve for contingent losses relating to the estimated costs of future
claims, recalls and others. This reserve is recorded as a liability.

42



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

17. Commitments and Contingencies

As of December 31, 2007, the Controlling Company provided one note to financial institutions as
collateral in relation to various borrowings and guarantees of indebtedness. The subsidiares
including LG Innotek Co., Ltd. also provided several notes and checks to financial institutions as
collateral in relation to various borrowings and guarantees of indebtedness.

As of December 31, 2007, the Controlling Company has bank overdraft facility agreements with
various banks, and the upper limit of Controlling Company is ¥355,700 million.

As of December 31, 2007, the Controlling Company has sales agreements for export trade
accounts receivable with various banks amounting to W 6,694,227 million, and also has sales
agreements for domestic trade accounts receivable with Woori Bank amounting to W 350,000
million. The Controlling Company corporate electronic settlement services contracts for
collection of accounts receivable with Hana Bank and others amounting to W 150,000 million.
The subsidiaries also have a revolving credit facility agreement and sales agreements for accounts
receivable with several banks (Note 5).

As of December 31, 2007, the Controlling Company has corporate electronic setflement services
contracts for payment of trade accounts payable with various banks amounting to W 1,165.450
million.

As of December 31, 2007, the Controlling Company has agreements with several banks in
relation to the opening of letters of credit,

As of December 31, 2007, the Controlling Company is provided with repayment guarantee of
W62,652 million from Seoul Guarantee Insurance Company relating to the completion of sales.

As of December 31, 2007, the Controlling Company has various technical assistance agreements
with various foreign companies for the manufacture of certain product lines and trademark
licenses agreements with LG Corporation and Philips Electronics.

The Controlling Company entered into an asset-transfer contract with Hana TX Ltd. to transfer its
prepaid VAT receivable amounting to ¥70,000 million on December 21, 2007. There was no
outstanding balance receivables transferred (o Hana TX Lid.
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As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company is contingently liable for guarantees
approximating 2,666,671 million (USS$ 2,842 million) and 3,093,836 million (USS 3,328
million), respectively, on the indebtedness of its subsidiaries and affiliates, as follows:

fin millions of Korean won) 2007 2006
LG Electronics U.S.A., Inc. (LGEUS) W 215786 W 260,288
LG Electronics Mlawa 5P Z0.0 (LGEMA) 151,939 228,711
P T. LG Electronics Indonesia ( LGEIN) 233,769 208, 580
LG Electromics ltalia 5.P. A (LGEIS) 93,820 195,216
LG Electronics Tianjin Appliances Co., Ltd, (LGETA) 134,912 169,967
LG Electronics European Shared Service Center BV (LGESC) 446,171 167,414
LG Electronics Thailand Co. Ltd. (LGETH) 168,409 151,525
LG Electronics Monterrey Mexico S A, de OV, (LGEMM) 130,585 150,956
Manjing LG-Tontru Color Display System Co., Ltd, (LGEND)

{formerly LGENT) 00,6493 141,820
LG Electrenics European Holdings BV (LGEEH) - 134,446
LG Electronics Wroclaw Sp.fo.o. (LGEWR) 71444 129557
LG Electronics Mexico 5. A, DE, C.V. (LGEMS) 57,289 85,493
LG Electronics VLK. Lud. (LGEUK) - B3.664
LG Electronics { TaiZhou) Refrigeration Co,, Lul(LGETR) 90,117 80801
LG Elecironics RUS, LLO{LGERA) 129,472 72,500
LG Electronics {Nanjing) Plasma Co., Lid (LGENP) - 71,839
LG Electronics Shenyang Ine.(LGESY) 62,386 T0.315
LG Electronics Columbia, Lida (LGECH) 54416 69,720
LG Electronics China Co., Ltd, (LGECH) 67,693 65,434
LG Electronics S A, Lid. (LGESA) 62878 6l 809
Others 405,892 493,472

W 2,666,671 W 3,093 836

As of December 31, 2007, the Controlling Company is named as a defendant in legal actions
which were brought against the Company by Fisher & Paykel in New Zealand and Mahmood
Saleh Abbar Co. in Saudi Arabia. In addition, the Controlling Company is named either as the
defendant or the plaintiff in various foreign and domestic legal actions arising from the normal
course of business. The aggregate amounts of foreign and domestic claims as the defendant and
plaintiff amounted to approximately EUR 11 million, US$90 million and W 10,014 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2007, The Controlling Company believes that although the
outcome of these legal actions is uncertain, they would not result in a material ultimate loss for
the Company.

The Controlling Company is currently under investigation by the fair trade or antitrust authorities
in Korea, EU and other markets with respect to possible anti-competitive activities among CRT
manufacturers. The Superior Court of Justice of the Court of Ontario in the Toronto Region has
issued an injunction the LG Electronics Canada, Inc., a subsidiary, to submit the docwments
related anti-competitive activities among CRT manufacturers. As of December 31, 2007, the
Controlling Company has been named as defendant in a number of federal class actions in the
United States alleging that the defendants violated the antitrust laws in connection with the anti-
competitive activities among CRT manufactures. Several federal class actions in the United States
are consolidated in Northern District of California. LG Electronics USA, Inc., a subsidiary, is also
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named as a defendant in several class actions in the United States in connection with above class
actions. The outcome of the cases could not be ascertained as of balance sheet date,

The LG, Philips LCD Co., Lid., a subsidiary, is currently under investigation by the fair trade or
antitrust authorities in Korea, Japan, US and other markets with respect to possible anti-
competitive activities in the LCD industry. As of December 31, 2007, the LG. Philips LCD Co.,
Ltd., along with a number of other companies in the LCD industry, has been named as a
defendant in a number of federal class actions in the United States alleging that the defendants
violated the antitrust laws in connection with the sale of LCD panels, Also, LG Electronics Inc.
and LG Electronics USA, Inc. were named as defendants in several class action in the United
States in connection with above class actions. In February 2007, LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd. and
certain of its officers and directors have been named as defendants in a [ederal class action suit in
the United States by the shareholders of the Company alleging violations of the U.S. Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, by LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd. and certain of its officers and
directors in connection with possible anti-competitive activities in the LCD industry.

These matters remain in the very early stages and the Company is not in a position to predict their
outcome. However, the Company intends to defend itself vigorously in matters.

For the year ended December 31,2007, the Controlling Company recognized gain on disposal of
investment securities amounting to W 27,295 million upon the redemption of one redeemable
preferred share of LG Nortel Co. Ltd.

The Company leases equipment such as notebooks under operating leases expiring in various

years through 2012. The Company’s liabilities according to operating lease agreements as of
December 31, 2007, are as follows:

fin millions of Korean won)

Year ended December 31

2008 W 22,421
2009 28936
2010 16,101
2011 1,906
2012 161
Total lease payments W 69,525

In order to reduce the impact of changes in exchange rates on future cash flows, the Controlling
Company has entered into foreign currency forward contracts. As of December 31, 2007, the
Company has outstanding forward contracts with Deutsche Bank and others for selling US dollars
amounting to US$192 million at contract exchange rates of W902.70 : US§1 ~ W938.60 : US$1,
with contract due dates of January through May 2008.

As of December 31, 2007, the Controlling Company has outstanding forward contracts with
HSBC Bank and others for selling euro and buying US dollars amounting to EUR67.5 million at
contract exchange rates of US$1.3709 : EUR 1~ US$1.4938 : EURI, with contract due dates of
January through June 2008,
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As a result of the above foreign currency forward contracts, an unrealized valuation gain and loss

amounting to ¥ 349 million and ¥ 5,912 million, respectively, were charged to operations for the
year ended December 31, 2007,

In order to reduce the impact of changes in exchange rates, the Controlling Company has also
entered into foreign currency option contracts. An unrealized valuation gain and loss amounting to
W36 million and W 13,770 million, respectively, were recorded for the year ended December 31,
2007,

A summary of the terms of outstanding currency option contracts as of December 31, 2007,

follows:
Amount
Option type (in millions) Exercise price Contract due date
Put Option Buy LiSH120 W B95.0/I5% ~ W 925.0/USS 2008,1.16 ~ 2008.6.24
Call Option Sell LiS§i20 W 911, 35S W 939, 2/LIS8 2008,1.16 ~ 2008.6.24
Put Option Buy EURGO.00 USH 1.353 /EUR 1 2008.1.29 ~ 2008.6.26
Call Oprion Sell EUR [20.00 US$% 1,353/ EUR 1 2008.1.29 ~ 2008.6.26

In order to reduce the impact of changes in interest rates and exchange rates, the Controlling
Company has also entered into a cross currency swap contract. An unrealized valuation gain and
loss amounting to W 1,134 million and W 52,889 million, respectively, were recorded on the
currency swap for the year ended December 31, 2007.

A summary of the terms of the outstanding cross currency swap contract as of December 31, 2007,

follows:
Transaction amount Annual interest rate (%)
i millions) Dishursement  Receipis Receipts Disbursement Maturity
JF Morgan Chase and others US$300  EUR247 5.00%% 3.70% June 17, 20010
The Korea Development Bank LISS100 EURE3 IM Libor +0.41% 2.00% May 27, 2008
Standard Chartered First Bank Korea Lud. W 49,000 USE50 4. 80% &M USD Libor  March 10, 2009
ABN-AMRO W47.530 Ls$50 4.35% M USD Libor May 24, 2009
Barclays W43,000 LS%50 4,32% 6 USD Libor June 19, 2009
Transaction amounl Annual interest rate (%)
{in millions) Receipts Disbursement Maturity
Goldman Sachs and others USE500 3M Libor + 63bp 5.62% May 15, 2012

As a result of the above derivatives contracts, a realized gain of W35,851 million and a realized
loss of W40,280 million were recorded as a non-operating income and expense, respectively, on
derivative transactions for the year ended December 31, 2007,

LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, has entered into foreign currency forward contracts to

manage the exposure to changes in currency exchange rates in accordance with its foreign
currency risk management policy. The use of foreign currency forward coniracts allows the
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Company to reduce its exposure to the risk that the eventual Korean won cash outflows resulting
from operating expenses, capital expenditures, purchasing of materials and debt service will be
adversely affected by changes in exchange rates,

A summary of said contracts follows:

fin millions) Buying Contract foreign
Contracting party  Selling position puosition exchange rate Maturity date
ABN-AMRO and USE 1,550 W 1420488  WROB.00: USS1- January 2, 2008 -
others WO38.80: USS] March 3, 2008
Woorn Bank and EUR 80 W 104 989 W1,297.76: EUR 1-  January 2, 2008 -
others W1,352.36: EURI Febuary 27, 2008
BNP Paribas and others W 39,934 JBY 5000  W7.922: IP¥1- Janary 14, 2008 -
WR.052: JP¥] Febuary 14, 2008
ABN-AMRO and USS 87 JPY 10,000  JPY113.46: USH]- January 1, 2008 -
others JPY¥116.05: USE] Febuary 20, 2008

As a result of the above foreign currency forward contracts, the Company recorded unrealized
gains and losses on outstanding foreign currency forward contracts of W4,610 million and

W 34,974 million, respectively. Total unrealized gains and losses of 2,544 million and

W 21,409 million, respectively, were charged to operations for the year ended December 31, 2007,
as these contracts did not meet the requirements for a cash flow hedge. Net unrealized gains and
losses, net of related taxes, incurred relating to cash flow hedges from forecasted exports, were
recorded as comprehensive income.

The forecasted hedged transactions are expected to be completed on March 3, 2008. The
aggregate amount of all deferred gains and losses of W2,066 million and W 13,565 million,
respectively, recorded net of tax under capital adjustments, are expected to be included in the
determination of gain and loss within a year from December 31, 2007.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recorded realized exchange gains of
W 55,132 million on foreign currency forward contracts upon settlement, and realized exchange
losses of W53,562 million.

LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, has entered into cross-currency swap contracts (o manage
the exposure to changes in currency exchange rates in accordance with its foreign currency risk
management policy and to manage the exposure to changes in interest rates related to floating rate
notes.

A summary of such contracts follows:

fin millions) Contract foreign
Contracting party Buving position Selling position exchange rate Maturity date
oo Bl ad 3M Libor-3M
ook Bank @ Uss 150 : Libort0.53%  January 31,2012
ot ; W 143,269 4.54%~5.35%

47



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

As of December 31, 2007, no unrealized gains and unrealized losses of W 3,452 million were
recognized as accumulated other comprehensive income as these contracts fulfilled the
requirements for hedge accounting for financial statement purposes, while unrealized losses of

W 671 million were charged to current income as these contracts did not fulfill those equirements,

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recorded realized gains of W919 million

(2006: ¥ 361 million) and no realized loss (2006: ¥ 26,174 million) on cross-currency swap
contracts upon settlement.

LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into interest rate swap contracts to manage the
exposure to changes in interest rates related to floating rate notes.

A summary of these contracts Tollows:

fin millions) Contract
Contracting party Amount Contract Foreign Exchange Rate Maturity date
SC First Bank USE 150 Accept floating rate 6 M Libor May 21, 2009 —

Pay fixed rate 5.375% - 5.644% May 24, 2010

As of December 31, 2007, unrealized losses of W4.910 million were recognized as accumulated

other comprehensive income as these contracts fulfill the requirements for hedge accounting for
financial statement purposes.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recorded realized gains of W 4 million

(2006 : W 6 million) and realized losses of W 257 million (2006 : W 27 million) on interest rate
swap contracts upon settlement,

LG. Philips LCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, entered into option contracts to manage the exposure to
changes in currency exchange rates in accordance with its foreign currency risk management
policy. These transactions do not meet the requirements for hedge accounting for financial
statement purposes, Therefore, the resulting realized and unrealized gains or losses, measured by

quoted market prices, are recognized in current operations as gains or losses as the exchange rates
change.

A summary of these contracts follows:

fin millions)
Contracting party USD Put Buying USD Call Selling Strike Price Maturity date

KDB and others USE 180 Uss 180 Woe17.00:U581 January 11, 2008
Wo932.00:U851 March 31, 2008

(in millions)

Contracting party  JPY Call Buying  JPY Put Selling Strike Price Maturity date
Citi bank and IPE 10,000 TP¥ 10,000 WT.B50:0PY] January 11, 2008-
others WR.300:TP¥1 Febuary 14, 2008
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As of December 31, 2007, unrealized gains of W 4,080 million and unrealized losses of W 775
million were charged to current income, as these contracts did not fulfill the requirement for hedge

accounting for financial statement purposes.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recorded realized gains of W54 million
(2006: nil) and no losses (2006: nil) upon settlement of target forward option contracts, and
realized gains of W 5,808 million and losses of W832 million (2006 : nil) upon settlement of range

forward options.

The consolidated subsidiaries including LG Electronics Mlawa Sp.zo.o. have entered into several

derivative contracts with financial institutions.

In certain cases, the generally accepted accounting principles in Korea require the use of
assumptions and measurements of specific assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses, mainly
focusing on outstanding or post-balance sheet date transactions. These assumptions and
measurements are based on judgment and available information and, consequently, actual results

could differ from those assumptions and measurements.

18. Income Tax

Income tax expense(benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, consists of the

following:
fin millions of Korean won)

Current income tax
Deferred income taxes from
temporary differences
Deferred income taxes from tax credit
Income taxes added to sharcholders’ equity

Deferred income taxes from losses carried forward
Income tax expense(benefit)

Deferred income taxes charged directly to the shareholders” equity are as follows:

(in millions of Korean won)

Gain on valuation of available-for-sale securities
Loss on valuation of available-for-sale securities
Gain on valuation of equity-method investments
Loss on valuationol equity-method investments
Gain on valuation of derivatives

Loss on valuation of derivatives

Consideration for converlible rights

Others
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2007 2006

W 374532 W 141,979

144,046 4,462

(93,242) (130,970)

(65,547) 34,802

(49,586) (248,493)

W 310,203 W (198,220)
2007 2006

W (279) W 3,153

179 30

1,207 (1,196)

18,671 1,680

8,696 (676)

1,546 (1.081)

(13,617 (4.078)

(81,950) 16,970

W (65,547) W 34,802




LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Components of deferred income taxes as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities)

(in millions of Korean won) 2007 2006
Depreciation W 30,846 W (7,804)
Allowance for doubtful accounts 4.813 6,711
Product warranty reserve 45,384 66,538
Equity method investment securities (565,593) (281,993)
Acerued expenses 201,044 135,530
Derivative transaction debit(credit) 3,898 492
Accrued severance benefits 11,692 3227
Deferred income tax liabilities added o

shareholders’ equity (215,081) (149.534)
Tax credits carried forward 580,778 647,063
Less ; Valuation allowance = (159,527)
Loss carry forward 307,895 258,309
Others 322,981 194,683

W 728,657 W 713,695
Deferred income tax assels W 1,307,571 W 979,182
Deferred income tax liabilities W (578.914) W (265,487)
The gross balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
2007 2006
fin millions af Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
Korean won) assets liahilities assets liabilities
Current W 740,743 W (687} W 234,052 W (3.064)
Non - current 566,828 (578,227) 745,130 (262,423)

The Company periodically assesses its ability to recover deferred income tax assets. In the event
of a significant uncertainty regarding the Company's ultimate ability to realize such assets, the
assets are reduced to its estimated net realizable value. As of December 31, 2007, deferred income
tax assets resulting from equity method investment securities are not recorded because the
Company’s ability to realize those deferred income tax assets is uncertain.

The statutory income tax rate, including resident tax surcharges, applicable to the Company is
27.5% for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. However, as a result of tax adjustment,

tax credits and other items, the effective tax rate of the Company for the years ended December 31.

2007, was approximately negative 13.04%, Since the Company has loss before income tax benefit,
the Company did not compute any effective tax rate during the year ended December 31, 2006.
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19. Capital Stock
Capital stock as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consists of;

2007 2006
Par value Number of Amount Number of Amount
per share shares issued {in millions)  shares issued {in millions)

Common stock W 5,000 144,647 814 W 723,239 144.647.814 W 723,239
Preferred stock ' 5,000 17,185,992 85,930 17,185,992 85,930
161.833.806 W 800,169 161,833,806 W 809,169

' The preferred sharcholders have no voting rights and are entitled to preferred dividends at a rate of one
percentage point over that of common stock. This preferred dividend rate is not applicable to stock

dividends,
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the number of shares authorized is 600 million shares.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, changes in capital stock and capital surplus were as
follows:

fin millions of Korean won)

Date description Common stock Preferred stock Capital Surplus

Tanuary 1. 2006 W 714,296 W 85930 W 2,091,012

January, 2006 Conversion of

covertible bonds 6,945 - 90,783
February, 2006 Conversion of

covertible bonds 1 998 - 26,124
Balance, December 31, 2006 W 723,239 W B5930 W 2207919

20. Capital Surplus

Capital surplus as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consists of:

fin millions Korean won) 2007 2006
LGE’s capital surplus
Additional paid-in capital W 2207919 W 2,207,919
Others 12,074 12.074
LGE’s share in subsidiaries’ and equity
method investees’ capital surplus 339,612 319,638
W 2,559.605 W 2,339,631

As a result of the spin-off on April 1, 2002, W 1,876,153 million was recorded as capital surplus
representing the difference between the net assets transferred from LG Electronics Investment Lid.
of W2,815,707 million, net of capital stock of W 783,961 million, and capital adjustments
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transterred from LG Electronies Investment Ltd. of W 155,593 million. In addition, for the year

ended December 31, 2006, W 116,907 million was recorded as capital surplus due to conversion of
convertible bonds.

As a result of the issuance of foreign currency convertible bonds in 2003 and 2004, a premium for
conversion rights of ¥W9,891 million, net of tax was recorded as capital surplus representing the
difference between the issuance price of convertible bonds and the present value of bonds under
identical conditions without conversion rights. In addition, as a result of disposal of treasury stock,
a gain on disposal of treasury stock of W2,183 million was recorded as capital surplus.

21. Capital Adjustment
The Controlling Company has retained treasury stock consisting of 763,152 shares (2006 ;
763,147 shares) of common stock and 4,682 shares (2006 : 4,682 shares) of preferred stock as of

December 31, 2007, The Company intends to either grant these treasury shares (o employees and
directors as compensation, or to sell them in the future,

22, Accumulated other comprehensive income

Accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consists of the

following:

fin millions of Korean won) 2007 2006

Met accumulated comprehensive income of equity method investees W 720 W 3902
Net accumulated comprehensive expense of equity method investees {68.650) (19,426)
(ain on valuation of available for sale securities 5,359 4,622
Loss on valuation of available for sale securities (560) (89)
Giain (Loss) valuation of derivatives, net (5,511) 4,776
Owerseas operations translation adjustments and others 167,285 90,421

W 08,643 W 84,206

These amounts were net of tax effects(Note 18).

23. Retained Earnings
Retained earnings as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consist of the followings:
fin millions of Korean won) 2007 2006

Statutory reserve

Legal reserve’ W 111,107 W 82,382
Reserve for improvement of financial structure - 32,741
Others 34,000 34,000
145,107 149,323

YVoluntary reserve
Reserve for improvement of financial structure’ 35.465 -
Others’ 2.430.189 2413,015

24635 654 2413015

Unappropriated retained eamings 1,144,595 16.740
Retained earnings W3,755,356 W2,579,078




LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

24.

' The Commercial Code of the Republic of Korea requires the Company to appropriate, as a legal

reserve, an amount equal to a minimum of 10% of cash dividends paid until such reserve equals
50% of its issued capital stock. The reserve is not available for the payment of cash dividends,
but may be transferred to capital stock through an appropriate resolution by the Company’s
Board of Directors or used to reduce accumulated deficit, if any, with the ratification of the
Company’s majority sharcholders.

In accordance with the Regulation for Securities Issuance and Disclosure, the Company had
appropriated a certain portion of its retained eamings as a reserve for improvement of financial
structure. By amendment of that Regulation, the Company is no longer required to maintain the
reserve and there is no restriction as to its use.

* The Company appropriates a certain portion of its retained earnings as a reserve for research and
human resource development under the Special Tax Treatment Control Law. This reserve may
be transferred o discretionary reserve and distributed as dividends.

Stock Options

The Company grants stock options to its executives and employees who contribute to the
Company’s development in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors or approval
of the shareholders of the Company.

The Controlling Company granted stock options to its executives in accordance with the
resolution of the Board of Directors on March 22, 20035, The details of the stock options are as

tollows:

Stock covered by the stock options:  Common stock

Grant method: To compensate the difference between market price of the
stock and exercise price of the option
MNumber of shares granted; 766,000 shares. However, if the increase ratio of the stock

price for three years from grant date of the stock options
is not higher than that of the KOSPI (Korea Composite
Stock Price Index), the final number of shares (o be
exercised shall be 50% of number of shares to be
exercised at grant date.

Exercise price: W 71,130 per share
Exercisable period: Within 4 years from the day after 3 years from grant date.
Exercisable condition; For executives and employees who have worked for the

Company for more than two years from grant date
As of December 31, 2007, the remaining number of options to be exercised as granted by the

Controlling Company, is 722,000 as 44,000 options were canceled due to the retirement of an
executive officer,
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25.

LG.Philips LCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, granted stock options to its executives in accordance with
the resolution of the Board of Directors on April 7, 2005. The details of the stock options are as
follows;

Stock covered by the stock options:  Common stock

Grant method: To compensaie the difference between market price of the
stock and exercise price of the option
MNumber of shares granted: 450,000 shares. However, if the increase ratio of the stock

price for three years from grant date of the stock options
is not higher than that of the KOSPI (Korea Composite
Stock Price Index), the final number of shares to be
exercised shall be 50% of number of shares (o be
exercised at grant date,

Exercise price: W44,050 per share
Exercisable period; Within 4 vears from the day after 3 years from grant date.
Exercisable condition: For executives who have worked for the Company for

more than two years from grant date

As of December 31, 2007, the remaining number of options to be exercised in LG.Philips LCD
Co.,Ltd., a subsidiary, is 220,000 as 230,000 options were canceled due to the retirement of an
executive officer, The exercise price decreased from W44,260 to W44,050 due to the additional
issuance of common stock in 2005,

The Controlling Company recognized compensation costs of W 11,256 million for the year ended

December 31, 2007 (2006; nil), and LG.Philips LCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, recognized
compensation costs of W 560 million (2006: nil) for the vear ended December 31, 2007.

Sales

Sales for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, consist of the following:

2007 2006
fin mitlions af Korean wion)
Total sales W 56,086,693 W 47,954 990
Sales deduction (2.659.954) (1.615,126)
Met sale W 53426741 Wo46.339 864
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26. Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, consists of the following:

2007 2006
fin millions of Kovean waon)
Beginning balance of inventories W 2,854,105 W 2,661,838
Cost of goods manufactured or
merchandise purchasv:d' 41,215,161 37,876,475
Ending balance of inventories 2,717.605 2,854,105
Cost of sales W o 41,351,661 W 37,684,208

' Cost of goods manufactured or merchandise purchased includes loss on valuation of inventories (Note 6).

27. Selling and administrative expenses

Selling and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, consist of
the following:

2007 2006

(in millions of Korean won)
Salaries W 1,395,923 W 1,212,119
Severance benefits 103,604 97,085
Emplovee benefits 282,769 247.543
Freight expenses 1,565,891 1,393,937
Rental expenses 265,557 267,609
Commission expenses 1,139,640 1,141,832
Depreciation 173,061 163,035
Amortization 88,302 26,6306
Taxes and dues 81,145 73,764
Advertising expenses 1,230,655 1,143,785
Promotional expenses 941,371 B35.185
Research and development costs 380,809 403,064
Product warranty expenses 093,374 005,303
Others fi11.456 589,584

W 0,253,647 W 8,650,571
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28. Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, consists of the

following:

{in millions of Kovean woan)

Net income
Other comprehensive income and expense
Decrease from equitv-method investments
Tax effects: W1,207 million in 2007
Increase from equity-method investments
Tax effects: W18.671 million in 2007
(rain on valuation ol available-Tor-sale securities
Tax effects: W(279) million in 2007
Loss on valuation of available-for-sale securities
Tax effects: W 179 million in 2007
Gain (Loss) valuation of derivatives. net
Tax effects: ¥ 10,242 million in 2007
Oithers
Tax effects: W(81,950) million in 2007

Comprehensive income

Controlling interest comprehensive income
Minority interest comprehensive income

29. Earnings Per Share

2007 2006
W 2068698 W (208,514)
(3.182) 3,154
(49,224) (4,431)
737 (8,260}
(471) 1,885
(27.144) 785
98.081 23.987)
W 2087495 W (239.368)
W 1243358 W (451.330)
844,137 211,962

Basic eamnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, is calculated as

follows:

(in millions of Korean waon, except per sharve amounts)

Controlling interest net income attributable
to common stocks' W

Weighted average number of commeon
stocks outstanding’

Basic earnings per share W

2007 2006
1,097,062 W 218,279
143,584,662 143,884,667
7,625 W 1,517

Diluted earnings per share for years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, is calculated as follows:

fin millions of Korean won, except per shave amounts)

Diluted controlling interest net income
attributable to commeon stocks' W
Weighted average number of common
stocks for diluted earnings per share’

Diluted earnings per share’ W

2007 2006
1,097,062 W 230,952
143,584,662 146,933,888
7,625 W 1,572

36



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

' Controlling interest net income attributable to common stocks are as follows:

(in millions of Korean won, except per

share amounts) 2007 *is
Controlling interest net income W 1,228,922 W 245,203
Preferred stock dividends (15,464) (13,745)
Additional income available for
dividends allocated to preferred stock (116,396) (13.179)
Controlling interest net income attributable
to common stocks W 1,097,062 W 218279
Interest expense of convertible bond,
net of tax - 12,673
Controlling interest net income used to
determine diluted earnings per share W 1,097,062 W 230,952
* Weighted average number of common stocks are as follows:
(in millions of Korean won, except per 2007 2006
share amounis)
January 1, 2007 W 144,647,814 W 142,859,174
Conversion of convertible bond - 1,788,640
Treasury shares (763,152) (763,147)
Weighted average number of common
stocks outstanding 143,884,662 143,884,667
Convertible bond - 3.049.221
Weighted average number of common
stocks for diluted eamings per share W 143,884,662 W 146,933,888

¥ There was no dilutive effect in 2006,

30. Dividends

Details of the Controlling Company’s dividends declared for the years ended December 31, 2007

and 2006, are as follows:

2007 2006
Dividend Dividend Dividend Dividend
fin millions of Korean won} ratio (%) amount ratio (%) amount
Common stock 17% W 122,302 W 107914
Preferred stock 18% 15,463 13,745
W 137,765 W 121,659
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The Controlling Company’s dividend payout ratio for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, is computed as follows:

fin millions of Korean won, except for ratios) 2007 2006

Total dividends (A) W 137.765 W 121.659
Met income of the Controlling Company (B) 1,222,395 212,718
Dividend payout ratio ((A)(B)) 11.27% 57.19%

The Controlling Company’s dividend vield ratio for the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
is computed as follows:

2007 2006
Common Preferred Commaon Preferred
{in Korean won) stock stock stock stock
Dividend per share {A) W 850 W 900 W 750 W 800
Market price as of balance
sheet date (B) 100,000 50,000 55,000 32,400
Dividend yield rato ({(A)(B)) 0.85% 1.8% 1.36% 2.47%
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31. Related Party Transactions

The ultimate parent company is LG Corporation which is responsible for the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the parents and subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as

follows:

Parent
company

Consolidated
Subsidiaries

2007

LG Corpomation

Hi Plaza Inc.. Hi Business Logistics, LG Micron Lud,,
LG Innotek Co., Ltd, LG, Philips LCD Co., Lud., LG
Electronics Austria GmbH{LGEAG), LG Electronics
Alabama, Incd LGEALY, LG Electronics Almaty
Kazak Co Lidi LGEAK), LG Electronics Australia
Py, Lid {LGEAP), LG Electronics Klima Sanayi ve
Ticard P.S(LGEAT), LG Ebectronics Da Amazonia
Luda i LGEAZ), LG Electronics Benelux{ LGEBN),
LG Electronics Colombia Lida i LGECE), LG
Electromics Canada, Ine{ LGECH), LG Electronics
Inc. Chile Limitada( LGECL), LG Electronics
Deutschiand GmbH(LGEDG), LG Electronics
Espana 5.4 LGEES), LG Goldstar France

S.A R L{LGEFS), LG Electromics Gullf FZE
{LGEGF), LG Elecironies HE Limited{ LGEHE), LG
Electromics Mature { Hangzhou) Becording Media Cao,,
Lid{ LGEHM), LG Electronics Hellas 5. A
{LGEHS), LG Electronics Huizhou Ine, (LGEHZ),
LG Electronics Indm PYVT Lid. (LGEIL), PT LG
Electronics Indonesia Lud, (LGEIM), LG Electronics
Ialy 5.P. A, (LGEIS), LG Electromics JIT Europe
BV (LGEJE), LG Electronics Japan Inc. (LGEIP),
Kunshan LGMS Computer Co,, Ltd, (LGEKS), LG
Electronics European Logistics & Services

B VILGELS), LG Soft India PVT. Lud. (LGELV),
LG Electromics Mlawa SP.Z0.0. {LGEMA), LG
Electronics Momeco 5.4 R.L. (LGEMC), LG
Electronics (M) SON, BHD (LGEML}, LG
Electronics Monterrey Mexico S A, DE C.V.
{LGEMM), LG Electronics Maobile Research
US A LLC. (LGEMR), LG Electronics Mexico 5.4,
DE C. V. {LGEMS}, LG Electronics Mexicali
5.4.DECVILGEMX), LG Electronies (Nanjing)
Plazma Co.,, Lid, (LGEMNP), Manjing LG-Tontre
Color Display System Co., Lud. (LGEND ) Formerly
LGENTY), LG Electionics Polska SP.Zo, O (LGEPL),
LG Electronics Peru 5.4, (LGEPR), LG Electronics
Panama 5. A. (LGEPS), LG Electromics Portugal
{LGEPTY, Quingdan LG Inspur Drigital
Communication Co., Lid{LGEQD), LG Electronics
RUS, LLC{LGERA), LG Electronics Russia Ing,
(LGERI), LG Electronies Owverscas Trading
FZE{LGEOT), LG Electronics Reynosa. 5.4,
DEC.V. (LGERS), LG Electronics 5 A, Pty Lid,
{LGESA), Shanghai LG Electionics Co., Lid,
{LGESH), LG Electronics Singapore Pre Lid
(LGESL), LG Electronics de Sao Paulo Lida.
[LGESPY, LG Electronics Sweden AB (LGESW), LG
Electronics Shenyang lnc. (LGESY ), LG Electronics
Tianjin Appliance Co., Lid (LGETA), LG
Electronics Thailand Co., Lid. {LGETH), Tatzhou
LG-Chunlan Home Appliances Co., Lid{ LGETR)
(formerly LGECT), LG Taistar Electronics Taiwan
Co, Lad, (LGETT), LG Electronics United Kingdom
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2006

LG Corporation

Hi Plaza Inc., Hi Business Logistics, LG Micron Lid.,
L Innotek Co., Ltd., LG, Philips LD Co., Lid., LG
Ebectronies Alabama, Inc{LGEAL, LG Electromcs
Almaty Kazak Co LudiLGEAK}, LG Electionics
Antwerp Logistics N VILGEAL), LG Electronics
Austmlia Py, Lid{ LGEAP), LG Electronics Klima
Sandyi ve Ticaret P.S{LGEAT), LG Electronics Da
Amazonia Luda (LGEAZ), LG Electronics

Benelux{ LGEBN). LG Electronics Colombia
Lida ( LGECB), LG Electronics Canada.

Inc{ LGECT, LG Electionics Ing. Chile

Limiatndal LGEC L), LG Electronics Deutschland
GmbH(LGEDG), LG Electronics Espana
S.A(LGEES), LG Gobdstar France
S.ARLILGEFS), LG Electronics Gulf FZE
{LGEGF). LG Electronics HK Limited{ LGEHK), LG
Electronics Mature { Hangzhou) Recording Media Co.,
Ll { LGEHNY, LG Electromics Hellas 5. A,
{(LGEHS), LG Electronics Huizhou Ine. [LGEHZ),
LG Electronics India PYT Lid. {LGEIL), PT LG
Electronies Indonesia Lid, {LGEIN), LG Electronics
laly 8.F. A, (LGEIS), LG Electronics 1T Europe
B.VALGEIE), LG Electronies Japun Inc. (LGEIF),
Kunshan LGMS Compater Co., Lud, ( LGEKS), LG
Electronics European Logistics & Services
B.VILGELS), LG Electronics Mlawa SP.Za.0,
(LGEMA), LG Electronmics Moreco S AR L
{LGEMC), LG Electronics (M) SDN BHD
{LGEML), LG Electronics Monterrey Mexioo 5.4
DE C.V, (LGEMM), LG Electromics Mexico S A, DE
C.V A LGEMS), LG Electromics Mexicali S A TLE
C.VLGEMX), LG Electronics (Nanjing) Plazma
Co., Lid, ( LGENP), Nanjing LG-Tontru Color
Display Syatem Co., Lid, { LGEND N Formerly
LGENT), LG Electronics Polska SP.Zo. O, {LGEPL),
LG Electronics Peru 5. AL (LGEPR), LG Electronics
Panama S.A. {LGEPS), LG Electronics Portugal
(LGEFT), Quinadan LG Inspur Digital
Communication Co., Lad {LGEQD), LG Electronics
RUS, LLC{LGERA), LG Electronics Russia Inc.
(LGERIY, LG Electronics Overseas Trading
FEE(LGEOT), LG Electronics Reynosa, 5.A.
DECY, (LGERS), LG Electronics 5.A. Ply Lud
(LGESA), Shanghai LG Electionies Co,, Ltd.
(LGESH), LG Electromcs Singapore Pte Lid,
(LGESL). LG Electronics de Sao Pauko Lida.
{LGESPY, LG Electronics Sweden AB (LGESW), LG
Electronics Shenyang lnc. (LGESY), LG Ekctronics
Tianjin Appliance Co.. Lid, (LGETA), LG
Electromics Thailand Co., Lid. (LGETH), Taizhou
LG-Chunlan Home Appliances Co., Lid (LGETR)
(formerly LGECT), LG Taistar Electronics Taiwan
Co,, Ltd. {LGETT), LG Electronics United Kingdom
Lid. { LGEUK), LG Electronics LS A, Inc.



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated
Subsidiaries

Other
subsidiaries

Lid. { LGELIK), LG Electronics LUL5.A,, Inc.
{LGEUS), LG Electronics Vietnam Ca., Bid,
(LGEVM), Langehae LG Digital Mobile
Communication Co., Litd. (LGEYT), LG Electronics
MobileComm LS A Ine, (LGEMU) (Subsidiary of
LGEUS), LG Electromes China Co,, Lid, { LGECH),
LG Elegtronies Czech 3. R.0. (LGECZ), LG LG
Electronics Epypl 5.AE. (LGEEG). LG Electronics
Serviee Europe Netherlands BV, (LGEEH ) Formely
LGESE), GoldStar Mobile Comm. France 5, 4.5.1)
{LGEMF), LG Electronics Magyar KA { LGEME),
LG Electronics Philippines, Inc{ LGEPH) { formerly
LGECM), LG Electronics Qinhuangdao Co., Lid,,
(LGEQH), LG Electronics {China) R&ED

Center{ LGERD), LG Electronics European Shared
Service Center BV, (LGESC), LG Software PYT,
Lid (LGS, LG Electronics Wroclaw Sp. Zo.o.
(LGEWR), LG Innotek IN (LGITIN), LG Innoteck
US{LGITUS), LG Innoieck HE (LGITHZ), LG
Innotek Yamtai co, LTD{LGITY Th, LG Innotek
Poland., Lid {LGITPL), Zenith Electronics
Cormporation { ZENITH), LG Holding (HE} Ltd.,
Manling LG Pands Appliances Co., Lid { LGEPN,
LG Electronies Romania 5.R.L{LGERO}, LG.
Philips LCD America, Ine,, LG, Philips LD Japan
Co., Ltd., LG. Philips LCD Germany GmbH, LG.
Philips LCD Taiwan Co. Lid,, LG, Philips LCTY
Manjing Co., Lud., LG, Philips LCD Hong-Kong
Co,, Lt LG Philips LCD Shanghai Co., Ltd,, LG,
Fhilips LCD Poland Sp. zo.0., LG. Philips LCD
Ciuang Zhou Co., Lid, LG Micron( Fujion} Electronics
Co, Lul., EIC FROPERTIES FTE, LTI, Beijing LG
Building Development Company, LG arge &
medivum & small enterprises cooperation fund,
Inovation Investment Fund{Formerly Blue ocean
Inverstment Association).

LG Philips Display, Hi Logistics Ching Company
Limited, HI Losistics Ewrope BV, LG Electronics
Egypt Cairo 8.A E. (LGEEC), LG Electronics
Arpenting 5.A. (LGEAR), LG Electronics Ukmine
Co., Lid, {LGEURY, LG Electromics Middle East Co.,
Lid, | LGEME), LG Electronies RUS-Marketing,
LLCILGEEM}, LG Electromics Africa Logistics FZE
(LGEAF), LG Micron{ Taiwan) Lid, LGEMT, LG
Pasig, ElectroMagnetica Goldswr S.RLL, Triveni,
System Air-con Engimeening Lid,

(LGEUS), LG Electronics Vietnam Co,, Ltd,
(LGEVM). Langchao LG Digital Mobile
Communication Co., Ltd, (LGEYT), LG Electnmics
MobileComm U5 A, Inc. { LGEMU) ( Subsidiary of
LGEUS), LG Electronics Ching Co., Lud, (LGECH],
LG Electronics Czech 8.R.O0 (LGECZ), LG
Electronics Egyvpl 5.AE {LGEEG), LG Electironics
Service Europe Metherbands BV, { LGEEH) Formely
LGESE), GoldStar Mobile Comm, France S.AS.L
{LGEMF), LG Electronics Magyar Kit (LGEME]),
LG MITR Electronics Co,, Lud. (LGEMT), LG
Ebectronics Philippines, Ine. { LGEPH) { formerly
LGECM}, LG Electronics Qinhuangdao Co., Lid.,
{LGEQH), LG Electronics (China) R&D

Centerl LGERID), LG Electronics Ewropean  Shared
Service Center BV, (LGESC), LG Soft India
PVT,.Lid. (LGSI), LG Electronics Wales Lid,
{LGEWA), LG Innotek IN(LGITINY, LG lnnoteck
US{LGITUS), LG Innoteck HZ{LGITHZ), LG
Innotek Yantai co,, LTINLGITYT), LG Inmotek
Poland,, Ltd( LGITPL), Zemith Elgctronics
Corporation{ ZENITH), LG Holding (HK) Lad..
ManJing LG Panda Appliances Co., Lid (LGEPN),
LG Electronics Romania 5B LILGERD), LG,
Philips LCD America, Inc., LG, Philips LOD Japan
Co., Ltd, LG. Phulips LCD Germany GmbH, LG,
Philips LCD Taiwan Co. Ltd., LG, Philips LCD
Manjing Co., Lid., LG, Fhilips LCD Hong-Kong
Ca.Lud., L Philips LOCD Shanghai Co_ Lud., LG,
Philips LCD Poland Sp. #2000, LG, Philips LCD
Guang Zhou Co,, Lul, LG Micron(Fujian) Electronics
Co.Lud., EIC PROPERTIES PTE, LTD,, Baijing LG
Building Development Company, LG lage &
medium & small enterprises cooperation fund.,

LG Philips Display, Hi Logistics China Compuny
Limnited, HI Logistics Europe B.Y., LG Electionics
Egvpl Caito S.AE. (LGEEC), LG Electronics Austria
GmbH{LGEAG), LG Electronics Argenting 5.A.
{LGEAR). LG Electronics Ukmine Co., Lid.
{LGEUR), LGELY, LG Electronics Middle East Co.,
Ltd, { LGEME), LG Electronics Mobile Eesearch
U.S.ALLCILGEMR), LG Electronics Wclaw Sp.
Zo.o, (LGEWR), LG Electronics RUS-Marketing,
LLC(LGERM), LG Electronics Africa Logistics
F.Z.E (LGEAF), LG Micron( Taiwan) Lud, LG Pasig,
EleetroMagnetica Goldstar 5. R_L, Triveni
Innowvation vestment Fund{ Formerly Blue ocean
Inverstment Association).

Significant transactions, which occurred in the normal course of business with related companies,
and their related balances are as follows:

Transactions between the Controlling Company and its consolidated subsidiaries

fim milfions of Korean won)

Receivables
Payahles

i 1
Sales and other income

Purchases and other expenses

Gl

2007 2006
W 2,546,585 W 2,963,096
555,070 402,394
15,586,686 15,254,789
2804001 2423976



LG Electronics Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007 and 2006

'The sales amount above includes sale of certain property. plant and equipment to a subsidiary totaling
W 109,212 million

Transactions between consolidated subsidiaries

(in millions of Korean won) 2007 2006
Receivables and payables W 2,809,262 W 2,578,888
Sales, purchases and others 16,175,450 13,637.038

Transactions between the Company and equity-method investees

{in millions of Korean won) 2007 2006

Receivables W 385,232 W 566,725
Pavables 620 R53 293.205
Sales and other income' 2,759,020 26098412
Purchases and other t:xptnsr:s' 3.731.614 4.410.151

' The sales amount above includes sale of certain property, plant and equipment 1o a subsidiary

totaling W 50,537 million, while the purchases amount includes the purchase of property, plant and
equipment from a subsidiary totaling W 119 793 million.

Significant management compensation costs of Controlling Company and its domestic major
subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

Controlling LG.Philips LG Innotek LG Micron okl
Company LCD Co., Lid Co.. Lid. Ltd.
{in millions of Korean won)
Short-term salaries W 8.071 W 1,732 W 2,873 W 662 W 13338
Provision for severance benefits 4,393 HEE - 657 5,738
Share-based compensation 5.036 560 - - 5.596
2007 W 17,500 W 2080 W 2,873 W 1319 W 24672
2006 W 10,187 W 1,880 W 2,811 W 1,058 W 15936

Key management refers to the directors who have significant control and responsibilities on the
Company's operations and business.

32, Segment Information

The Company has organized reportable business divisions consisting of the Digital Display
division, Media division, Digital Appliance division, Mobile Communications division and LCD
division of the subsidiary, LG.Philips LCD Co., Ltd. In addition, the Company has a centralized
supporting division to provide general and administrative, marketing and sales and research and
development services to each business division.
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The main products that each business division manufactures and sells are as follows:

Dhgital Display division: TV, PDP, Monitor and others
Digital Media division: Audio, VCR, CD-ROM, PC and others
Digital Appliance division: Refrigerators, washing machines, air conditioners,

microwave ovens, vacuum cleaners and others

Mobile Communications division:  CDMA handsets, UMTS handsets, wireless telephones,
WLL handsets, mobile telecommunications, transmitters,
switchboards, keyphone systems and others

LCD division: TFT-LCD and others
Other affiliates: LG Innotek Co., Ltd., LG Micron Ltd., Hi Plaza Inc, and
others

Financial data by business division for the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as

follows:
2007 2006
External Operating External Operating

{in millions of Korean won) sales Income (loss) sales Income (loss)
Business Division

Digital Display Wo12.618.717 Wo(439,968) Woli368.030 W 69,743
Digital Media 5,394,030 62,379 5 400,668 TLITI
Digital Appliance 11,803,070 717,059 10,376,005 594,398
Mobile Communications 11,058,704 932,523 0,786,249 152,515
LCD 14,351,966 | 504,007 10,624 200 (278,105}
Other businesses and supporting division 3,963,546 46,993 3,512,193 796
Elimination of internal transactions (5,763,297) {1,562) (4,727.571) (6,033)

W 53.426.741 W 2.821,433 W 46339864 W 5,085

Financial data by geographic area for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20006, are as

follows:
2007 2006

{in millions of Korean won) External sales Ratio External sales Ratio
Diomestic W 10,388,504 19%: W 8,027.335 17%
Morth America 11,640,015 22% 0,517,952 21%
Europe 11,737,312 22% 10,032,871 22%
Central & South America 3.527.620 T4 2.995.755 a%
Asia 6,179,142 11% 6.401.364 14%%
China 9,907,159 19% B.B67470 19%%
Others 40,989 - 497117 1%

W 53,426,741 100% W 46,339,864 100%

Bl
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33. Assets and Liabilities Denominated in Foreign Currencies

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are as follows:

2007 20006

Foreign Korean won Foreign Korean won

fin millions) Currency equivalent currency equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents EUR 135 W 186,836 EUR 252 W 307,642
CNY 1,543 198.252 CNY 1.043 124,000
LUsH 67 63.236 US§H 36 33,687
GBP 17 31.648 GBP 10 17.604
Others 280,798 Others - 168.470
W 760,770 W 651,493
Trade accounts receivable USH 750 W 704039 USH 732 W 698,829
CNY 3,252 506,894 CNY 3.5946 427,786
BRL 754 400,081 BRL 502 218,167
EUR 79 109,447 EUR 201 245,494
MXN 2,856 245724 MXN 2,934 251,336
Others - 924,670 Others - R93,237
W 2,890,855 Wo2,734,849
Other accounts receivahle EUR 285 W 394134 EUR 261 W 318,566
INR 1.331 31761 INR 1,128 23,753
PLZ 427 163,653 PLZ 227 72,292
Others - 288,678 Others 183,261
W 878,226 W 507.872
Short-term loans receivable LSS 5 W 4443 USH 12 W 11,353
EUR 1 869 EUR 1 1.268
Others 2,417 Others - 3,876
W 7.729 W 16,497
Long-term financial instrument: ELJR 1 W 1,045 EUR l W 830
Us§ 13 12,271 USS 254
Others 70,563 Others 95,089
W 83,879 W 96173
Trade accounts payable CNY 7,952 W 1021472 CNY 7,787 W 926,465
LSH a0t 282,611 USSH 228 211,565
EUR 17 24020 EUR 70 85,063
Others 435,041 Others - 443 802
W 1,763,144 W 1,666,899
Other accounts payable EUR 50 W 69221 EUR 49 W 59,982
CNY 1.878 241,255 CNY 1,454 176540
Uss 50 47326 USS 47 43.696
Oihers - 222625 Others 129.635
W 580427 W 409,853
Withholdings MXN 388 W 33,383 MXN 371 W 31784
LSS 35 32,727 US% 41 37.927
EUR 148 204,753 EUR 115 130,975
GBP 19 34903 GBP 22 39,362

0l
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2007 2006

Foreign Korean won Foreign Korean won

{(in miflions) CUrrency equivalent CUTTENCY equivalent
Others - 68380 Others - 51,827
W 374,126 W 300,875
Short-term borrowings CNY 5,864 W 753,288 CNY 5.940 W 706,682
Uss 287 269335 USSH 107 00,685
GBP - 21 GBEP 15 27418
EUR 33 45276 EUR 125 153,330
Others - 739.877 Others - 526,644
Wo1,807,798 W 1,513,759
Other current liabilities INE 2002 W 47,795 INR 1.984 W 41,785
USE 177 166,028 USS 161 149,226
CNY 1,301 167000 CNY 1,088 120,551
Others - 421,636 Others - 290,954
W R02.549 W 611,516
Logn-term debis CNY 1,346 W 172,839 CNY bl W 10,529
UsE a4 78,644 USS B0 74368
Cithers - 293,232 Others - 12,632
W 544,715 W 97,529

34. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Significant transactions not affecting cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
are as follows:

fin millions of Korean won) 2007 206
Reclassification of current maturities of debentures W 427 389 W 1,217.895
Reclassification of current maturities of long-term debts 447 315 225,602
Conversion of foreign convertible bonds into common stocks - 123,520
Increase in assets due to changes in the consohdated entities - 2,612
Decrease in assets due to changes in the consolidated entities 358,655 =
Decrease in liabilities due to changes in the consolidated entities 372,361 9,968

35. Events Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date

On January 1, 2008, the Controlling Company entered into a contract to sell the Active Matrix-
Organic Light Emitting Diodes (“AM OLED") business to LG.Philips LCD Co., Ltd., one of its
subsidiaries, by handing over the AM OLED business related inventories, intellectual property

rights and employees.

On February 21, 2008, the Controlling Company entered into a contract with LG Micron Ltd. to
acquire LG Micron Ltd’s PDP Rear Plate division (“PRP”) and for LG Micron Ltd. to acquire the
Controlling Company’s Printed Circuit Board division (“PCB™).

On February 4, 2008, LG Philips LCD changed its name to LG Display Co. Ltd. as approved by
its Board of Directors. This was ratified by its sharcholders on February 29, 2008,
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